COUNCIL MEETING

JULY 20, 2016

The Council Meeting of the Council of the County of Kaua‘l was called to order
by Council Chair Mel Rapozo at the Council Chambers, 4396 Rice Street, Suite 201,
Lihu‘e, Kaua‘i, on Wednesday, July 20, 2016 at 9:09 a.m., after which the following
Members answered the call of the roll:

Honorable Mason K. Chock

Honorable Gary L. Hooser

Honorable Ross Kagawa

Honorable Arryl Kaneshiro

Honorable KipuKai Kuali‘ (excused at 3:10 p.m.)
Honorable JoAnn A. Yukimura

Honorable Mel Rapozo

APPROVAL OF AGENDA.

Councilmember Kagawa moved for approval of the agenda as circulated,
seconded by Councilmember Kuali‘i.

Council Chair Rapozo: Is there any discussion? I would just like to
say that we are going to be taking Resolution No. 2016-49 first. We will take that out
of order if there are no objections. Also, we do have a 1:30 p.m. certificate
presentation here at the Council Chambers.

The motion for approval of the agenda was then put, and unanimously carried.

Council Chair Rapozo: Motion carried. Next item, please.

MINUTES of the following meetings of the Council;

May 18, 2016 Council Meeting

May 18, 2016 Public Hearing re: Bill No. 2628

June 15, 2016 Council Meeting

June 15, 2016 Public Hearing re: Bill No. 2629 and Bill No. 2633
July 6, 2016 Public Hearing re: Resolution No. 2016-48

Councilmember Kagawa moved to approve the Minutes as circulated, seconded
by Councilmember Kuali‘i.

Council Chair Rapozo: Is there any discussion? Is there any public
testimony?

There being no objections, the rules were suspended to take public testimony.

There being no one present to provide testimony, the meeting was called back
to order, and proceeded as follows:
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The motion to approve the Minutes as circulated was then put, and
unanimously carried.

Council Chair Rapozo: Motion carried. Next item, please. We will
take the Consent Calendar and then go right into the Resolution.

CONSENT CALENDAR:

C 2016-156 Communication (06/01/2016) from the Mayor, transmitting for
Council consideration and confirmation, Mayoral appointee Beth A. Tokioka to the
Board of Water Supply — Term ending 12/31/2018.

C 2016-157 Communication (06/22/2016) from the Director of Finance,
transmitting for Council information, the Condition of the County Treasury
Statement quarterly report as of May 10, 2016.

C 2016-158 Communication (06/27/2016) from the Acting County Engineer,
transmitting for Council consideration, a Resolution Establishing A County Bus Stop
Along Kawaihau Road, Kawaihau District, County Of Kaua‘.

C 2016-159 Communication (07/07/2016) from the Acting County Engineer,
transmitting for Council consideration, a Resolution Authorizing The Mayor Or The
Director Of Finance Of The County Of Kaua‘ To Enter Into An Intergovernmental
Agreement With The State Of Hawai‘l, Department Of Health For A Loan From The
State Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund For The Kekaha Landfill Lateral
Expansion Cell 2, Project No. NPS0047-12, to secure the funds for the landfill
expansion project.

C 2016-160 Communication (07/08/2016) from the County Attorney,
transmitting for Council information, the Quarterly Report on Settled Claims which
were filed against the County of Kaua‘ from April 1, 2016 through June 30, 2016.

Councilmember Kualili moved to receive C 2016-156, C 2016-157, C 2016-158,
C 2016-159, and C 2016-160 for the record, seconded by Councilmember
Yukimura.

Council Chair Rapozo: Thank you. Is there any discussion? Is there
any public testimony?

There being no objections, the rules were suspended to take public testimony.

There being no one present to provide testimony, the meeting was called back
to order, and proceeded as follows:

The motion to receive C 2016-156, C 2016-157, C 2016-158, C 2016-159, and
C 2016-160 for the record was then put, and unanimously carried.

Council Chair Rapozo: Thank you. Can we have Resolution
No. 2016-49, please?

There being no objections, Resolution No. 2016-49 was taken out of order.
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RESOLUTIONS:

Resolution No. 2016-49 - RESOLUTION CONFIRMING MAYORAL
APPOINTMENT TO THE BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY (Beth A. Tokioka):
Councilmember Kuali® moved for adoption of Resolution No. 2016-49, seconded by
Councilmember Kagawa.

Council Chair Rapozo: Is there any discussion before we open up for
public testimony? I think Councilmember Yukimura had some questions for Beth. Is
there any discussion before we suspend the rules? Beth.

There being no objections, the rules were suspended.
Council Chair Rapozo: Just for the public’s information, Beth was

here a week ago for an interview. Councilmember Yukimura has some additional
questions, so Beth has agreed to be here today. With that, Councilmember Yukimura.

Councilmember Yukimura: Thank you. Good morning, Beth.
BETH A. TOKIOKA: Good morning.
Councilmember Yukimura: Thank you very much for being here. We have

received about six hundred (600) E-mails opposing your nomination or appointment
for the Board of Water Supply. The concern was pest1c1des which Syngenta, your
employer, makes and manufacturers. My question is, if any issues of pesticides come
up or any issues related to pesticide come up before the Board, will you recuse
yourself?

Ms. Tokioka: Thank you for the question. Again, I am Beth
Tokioka. Going back to the interview that I had two (2) weeks ago, we talked about
conflicts of interests, and so I am fully aware of the requirements in terms of conflicts
of interests. In terms of pesticides, if issues come up that would be a clear conflict of
Interest related to my employment or actually any subject matter pesticides or others
regarding my employment or any other affiliation that I have, I would absolutely
recuse myself as I am required to do. If there are any questions, maybe there is not
a clear conflict of interest, but a potential one, I would absolutely want to clear that
up and seek the guidance of the Board of Ethics as to whether or not there is a conflict
and I should recuse myself. I would certainly follow the guidance of the Board of
Ethics in those matters.

Councilmember Yukimura: Okay. Is there anybody else who wants to ask
a question on that?

Council Chair Rapozo: I just want to make a clarification because
right now, it is up to about six hundred forty (640) E-mails, and those six hundred
forty (640) E-mails are replicated E-mails. They came from some kind of system. I
am going read the E-mail because it mentions the word “pesticide,” but it does not
talk about that. It says is, “To Chairman Mel Rapozo” and in fact, I believe the first
seventy-eight (78) had my name wrong. That is how I know it was replicated. “To
Chairman Mel Rapozo and Members of the Kaua‘i County Council, I am writing in
strong opposition to the appointment of Beth A. Tokioka to the County’s Board of
Water Supply. Ms. Tokioka is an employee of Syngenta, a corporation that is
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currently suing the County of Kaua‘i to prevent mandated disclosure of information
related to pesticide use.” That is the only reference to pesticides. It is a lawsuit.
They are basically saying that you are an employee of a company that is suing the
County. “Decisions about the County’s water supply should not be influenced by
business and other special interests in order to protect the public’s best interest and
ensure government transparency. I urge you to oppose the appointment of the
Ms. Tokioka to the Board of Water Supply. Thank you for your consideration.” This
one happens to come from Ashland, Oregon. I just pulled one. There a new one that
just came in this morning. I will say out of the six hundred forty (640) or so, as I
counted, probably thirty-eight percent (38%) or thirty-nine percent (39%) were from
Kaua‘i residents. Many of them are duplicated. The remainder are from off-island
and the mainland. I want to make that clear to the public because I spent the time
counting them. We all had these. I also want to make this clear, too, because we got
this spreadsheet that says on this one, we had seven (7) support, four (4) oppose, and
three (3) other. The reason the six hundred forty (640) are not on here is because the
E-mail that was used in this system was counciltestimony@kauai.gov, which only
comes to the seven (7) us, so the staff did not get it. I am sorry,
councilmembers@kauai.gov. Counciltestimony@kauai.gov comes to all of us as well
the staff. I just want to make sure that the public understands that the E-mail that
was used was only coming to the seven (7) of us. I just wanted to make that
clarification.

Ms. Tokioka: If I may? I do work for Syngenta. I am very
proud to work for Syngenta. I work with a lot of people that I respect very much.
Syngenta did not ask me to seek this appointment. When I talked to my bosses about
it, they neither encouraged nor discouraged me. They said, “It is your decision. If
you want to do that, we will support you by providing you the time and the space to
serve the community in that way.” I have one hundred percent (100%) confidence
that my employer will not attempt, in any way, to push any undue influence on my
decision-making. I have one hundred percent (100%) confidence in that. I also built
a reputation in this community over the past twenty-four (24) years and am very
proud of that reputation. I take it very seriously. I would never do anything to
tarnish it. As I come to the Board of Water Supply, if I am approved, I will do so as
a resident, an employee of the company I work for, a former public servant, a
homeowner, a mother, and all of the above. I will make those decisions on my own
accord. I would never compromise my reputation for a company that I work for or
anybody else. So that is where I come from on this. I understand concerns about
conflicts of interests. I think the system provides for that with the process of recusal,
and I will absolutely use that process whenever that question arises. I will make that
promise to you today.

Council Chair Rapozo: Okay. Are there any other questions for
Ms. Tokioka? Councilmember Yukimura.

Councilmember Yukimura: Thank you very much. This is not regarding
pesticides, but it is regarding your relationship to Mayor Carvalho. You have made
a transition from being an employee and very close confidante to Mayor Carvalho and
now you are an independent citizen. My question is will you be able to act as an
independent citizen; i.e. a mother, a resident, and someone who cares a lot about the
community? Will you be able to make that transition from being an employee where
you need to do what the Mayor needs and wants?
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Ms. Tokioka: Sure. I have not worked for the County for
over a year now. I am very close to Mayor Carvalho. I believe very much in his
initiatives. I respect him greatly. I also disagree with him often. He can tell you
that himself. Even when I was working with him, there were times that I disagreed
with what was happening and I was not afraid to tell him that. While I do believe in
much of what his vision is, I can absolutely act independently. I will want to know
where his position is on issues because that is important, right?

Councilmember Yukimura: Absolutely.

Ms. Tokioka: Because the Department has to somehow
align and not be at contrary purposes with the Administration. But yes, I fully intend
to be independent in my thinking, but also seek the guidance of people that I respect
from all walks of life, including Mayor Carvalho and including people that I work
with like Alan Smith, for example, who has extensive knowledge of water issues,
people in the community, friends, family, and Councilmembers, as well. Yes,
especially on the Board of Water Supply because the Department of Water is a semi-
autonomous agency with a very large budget of its own and delivery of the service is
critical to the health and wellness of our community. It is a very important
responsibility. I take it very seriously and I think it has to be done. Board members
need to be seeking out input from all sectors of the community in decision-making on
that Board.

Councilmember Yukimura: Thank you.
Council Chair Rapozo: Councilmember Chock.
Councilmember Chock: Thank you. Thank you for the chance,

Council Chair Rapozo. Beth, given all of the testimony that has come in, thank you
for being here for additional questions. This is a little bit different, but I was
wondering what your take is based on the Supreme Court ruling from the Kaua‘
Springs case. What do you think the County’s role is in managing surface water is
moving forward and you might, as a board member, support that viewpoint or role?

Ms. Tokioka: I was following that case at a time when I was
with the County, and I have to admit I am not up to speed on it today. I know the
concept of water as a public trust, water as a public resource, and has to be managed
appropriately. I completely agree. Ithink that was a very important case. How it is
impacting, or influencing, or driving decision-making at the Board today, I could not
tell you. I would have to dig into that more before I could really give you a read.

Councilmember Chock: I have one (1) more, if you do not mind.
Obv1ously with the way the last few days have gone in terms of people’s input, there
1s a bigger issue, in my opinion, about government transparency and accountability,
at least perception-wise for the community that needs to be addressed. As a board
member at the Department of Water, how would you be able to increase those needs
so that the community is more engaged and was able to trust all of our government
processes, but specifically in your area and influence?

Ms. Tokioka: I think the Department of Water has done a
good job in last few years in terms of the public information staff that they have hired
and the kind of outreach that they are doing to the community. There is a lot of
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information going out from the Department to the community as far as I can see. 1
think as with all of our Boards and Commissions, there is limited input back in.
People do not generally show up for board meetings. They do not generally know
what 1s happening on a day-to-day basis. I think in that scenario, it is really
incumbent on the board members to be proactive to seek out of information. But I
think there might be ways that what is happening at board meetings can be more
systematically sent out to the public in ways that they are likely to consume, more so
than just putting minutes up on the website. There might be ways to work with the
communication staff over there to just via their Facebook page or maybe a recap after
the meetings of what the critical decisions were. I think that as far as I can see, the
transparency and information are there, but it is really trying to engage the public
more and that takes some work. I think it could be a little bit more proactive
communicating after board meetings.

Councilmember Chock: Thank you. Thank you, Council Chair
Rapozo.

Council Chair Rapozo: Councilmember Hooser.

Councilmember Hooser: Good morning. Part of my concerns, and I

expressed some of them to you earlier, is the perception as well as the actual, what I
believe is an inherent conflict by a person who represents a company who has a long
history of polluting drinking water systems around the world. Given the environment
of the Kaua‘i community today, there is a heightened sense of concern about that and
Syngenta has a public and pretty egregious reputation and track record including
water systems. So part of your responsibilities...

Councilmember Kagawa: Council Chair Rapozo, this is inappropriate.
Councilmember Hooser: No, it 1s not inappropriate.
Councilmember Kagawa: Point of order. It is not pertaining to the

agenda item.

Council Chair Rapozo: Hold on. The point has been made that it is
not part of the agenda item. I am considering this like a second interview, so you can
proceed. I would just be cautious on allegations, but go ahead and continue,
Councilmember Hooser.

Councilmember Hooser: I am making no allegations against the person
sitting in the chair.

Council Chair Rapozo: Yes, I know.

Councilmember Hooser: These are public facts about the company that
she presents.

Councilmember Kagawa: We are not discussing...
Councilmember Hooser: I think it is relevant.

Councilmember Kagawa: We are not discussing...
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Councilmember Hooser: Council Chair Rapozo, I have the floor.

Councilmember Kagawa: And you are talking about something that is
not on the agenda.

Councilmember Hooser: Council Chair Rapozo.

Council Chair Rapozo: We are going to take a recess. We are going
to take a five (5) minute recess.

Councilmember Kagawa: This is not on the agenda.
There being no objections, the meeting recessed at 9:25 a.m.
The meeting reconvened at 9:28 a.m., and proceeded as follows:

Council Chair Rapozo: I am going say this only once, today is a
question period for Beth. At last week’s meeting she was asked about the conflict of
interest by two (2) Councilmembers. She addressed it last week and again today.
That question has been asked and answered. I will allow questions of Beth and her
qualifications or her reasons why she wants to sit on this Board, but that is all I am
going to allow while Ms. Tokioka is up here. If you have comments, opinions, or
concerns about Syngenta or whatever else, you can save that for your discussion
period. While Beth is up here right now, I will allow questions and not question that
have been answered. With that, Councilmember Hooser.

Councilmember Hooser: Thank you. One (1) of your responsibilities as
a board member according to this document that Councilmember Yukimura got from
the Department of Water, the Board has the approving authority of the Department
of Water’s chemical testing budget and laboratory contracts. The budget for testing
for pesticides and contracts that go out and do that testing is controlled by the Board.
Would you see yourself recusing yourself from the chemical testing budget and
laboratory contract decisions?

Ms. Tokioka: I do not know that I would understand the
conflict there as long as we are providing enough money for the Department to do the
testing in the way that they feel is appropriate. I think if I were to vote on that and
to try to decrease the budget or somehow interfere with the plans that the
Department feels are appropriate, that would certainly be not appropriate for me to
do. But I do not know that approving a budget that would allow for that type of
testing to happen and providing adequate funds for it to happen in an appropriate
way would be a conflict. Maybe that is something that I would send to the Board of
Ethics to ask them to do. If that would require me to recuse myself from the entire
budget process, I would be very concerned about because that is one of the main
responsibilities of a Board of Water Supply member. If there was a very serious
concern, it would be something that I could ask the Board of Ethics.

Councilmember Hooser: Thank you.
Council Chair Rapozo: Thank you. Are there any other questions?

Do you have a question of Beth? I am trying to move this along. Are there more
questions for Beth? Go ahead.
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Councilmember Yukimura: You may have said it already, but can you
repeat it? What is your answer when people say that the connection to your employer
would taint your decision-making on the Board of Water Supply?

Ms. Tokioka: My answer to that is that first of all, I have
every confidence my employer would never try to interfere or try to dictate a position
to me, number one. Number two, even if my employer or anyone else tried to do that,
I would be making my own decisions. I think that I have the background and I have
enough contacts in the community to seek out my own information. I can be an
independent thinker on this body. I think it comes down to a matter of trust that I
will do what I say I will do and that I will not allow my employer or anyone else to
unduly influence me, that I will seek out my own counsel, that I will work closely
with the Department to understand the issues there, and make decisions as I see
appropriate.

Councilmember Yukimura: Sometimes it 1s difficult to take an
independent stand when it goes against the majority of people or of public perception.
Do you think you have the courage and wherewithal to do that?

Ms. Tokioka: I would like to think that I do. I have been in
that position numerous times standing next to Mayor Carvalho. I served under
three (3) Mayors so there were times when the Mayor was taking an unpopular
position and we had to defend that publicly. I think I am somewhat battle-tested in
that way. I know how to work through an issue like that and just knowing with the
confidence that if you stick with what you believe, do the right thing, continue to seek
input, and make a decision, that you feel comfortable with that you can get through
a difficult situation like that. I have been through it before. It is not something that
I would relish to be in a position like that, but I would work through that if it were to
come up.

Councilmember Yukimura: Well, when you stood with Mayor Carvalho, it
was part of your job to do that and now you will not be defending another person.
You will be having to stand up on your own position. Do you feel you can do that?

Ms. Tokioka: I think we all do that in our lives. I will give
you an example of having to stand on my own and fight for what I needed with my
son Pono as he was growing up.

Councilmember Yukimura: That is a good example.

Ms. Tokioka: He need support in school and otherwise to
deal with his disability. It was only us advocating for him at that time. We were
lucky to be working with the school system that was very accommodating in the end.
But yes, I have every confidence that I can do that.

Councilmember Yukimura: Thank you.

Council Chair Rapozo: Are there any other questions of Beth? If not,
thank you, Beth. Councilmember Yukimura, who did you want to bring up?

Councilmember Yukimura: Mr. Saiki.



COUNCIL MEETING 9 JULY 20, 2016

Council Chair Rapozo: Mr. Saiki.

KIRK SAIKI, Manager and Chief Engineer of the Department of Water:
Kirk Saiki, Department of Water.

Councilmember Yukimura: Thank you for being here. It was short notice
when I sent the question to you yesterday morning, but I did so because of all of the
E-mails we have been getting. I wanted to get clear about how many of the Board of
Water Supply’s decisions relate to pesticides. You did answer, and I just wanted for
the public’s sake since they have not seen this written testimony, to be clear about
how many or the extent of decision-making by the Board related to pesticides. Could
you just reiterate your written answer?

Mr. Saiki: At least during my tenure at the Department
of Water...

Councilmember Yukimura: Which has been how many years?

Mr. Saiki: Almost four (4) years now.

Councilmember Yukimura: Okay. Thank you.

Mr. Saiki: The Board has never made a decision on

pesticides. Like I said in the response to you, the closest relationship to pesticides
would be our testing, which is in our budget. They have never really questioned the
budget unless it increased and then if we told them that our testing regime was more
stringent this year, then they pretty much approved the budget.

Councilmember Yukimura: Okay. Are you saying that the only
connection between the Board’s decision and pesticides is the budget for testing?

Mr. Saiki: So far that I know.

Councilmember Yukimura: Yes.

Mr. Saiki: I am not real sure what your question is. Is it

do they ban us from using pesticides or set policies on it?

Councilmember Yukimura: My question was pretty broad. It was
anything Board decision relating to pesticides.

Mr. Saiki: The only thing in my tenure was that they
approve our budgets.

Councilmember Yukimura: The budget for testing of levels of pesticide in
drinking water?

Mr. Saiki: That is part of it. We test for other things as
well.

Councilmember Yukimura: Okay. There was some question, and I do not
know it was during the Bill No. 2491 debate, but about...I am not sure if it was
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Atrazine of something that the Board took the initiative to test to make sure. Do you
recall what that was? It was something out of the ordinary.

Mr. Saiki: Well, we tested for Dursban recently when
Councilmember Hooser asked us.

Councilmember Yukimura: Okay.

Mr. Saiki: But that was not a Board decision. That was

our decision.

Councilmember Yukimura: It was the Department’s decision?

Mr. Saiki: We had it within our budget to do it, so we just
did it.

Councilmember Yukimura: Okay. If you did not have enough money,

would you have gone to the Board to ask them for that?

Mr. Saiki: Yes, or what we would have done is we would
appropriate it within the laboratory budget.

Councilmember Yukimura: You would have included it in your budgeting
process and that is something that the Board would approved?

Mr. Saiki: Yes.

Councilmember Yukimura: Okay. Alright. Thank you very much, Kirk.

Council Chair Rapozo: Councilmember Hooser and Councilmember
Chock.

Councilmember Hooser: Good morning. I am not sure if you were on

the Board when the...
Mr. Saika: I was never on the Board.

Councilmember Hooser: I am sorry. In your position as Manager,
when Syngenta lawsuit....

Mr. Saiki: No, I was not there.

Councilmember Hooser: ...for one hundred five million
dollar ($105,000,000) global settlement, and I believe the Board voted to enter into
that settlement.

Mr. Saiki: I think so.

Councilmember Hooser: It was vregarding Atrazine and its
contamination in many communities. My question is related to what Councilmember
Yukimura was saying in terms of Board responsibility. If the Board wanted to be
more protective, if you would, and wanted to expand the testing into more chemicals,
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or more locations, or more frequency, could the Board take that action if they wanted
to?

Mr. Saiki: Yes, I believe so.

Councilmember Hooser: Okay. I think you were in your position when
Atrazine was found in the drinking fountain at Waimea Canyon Middle School.

Mr. Saiki: From the wipe sample?

Councilmember Hooser: Yes.

Mr. Saiki: Yes.

Councilmember Hooser: Was there a decision made at that time to test

for Atrazine in the water system immediately after that?

Mr. Saiki: Well, we were already testing for Atrazine.
Councilmember Hooser: Okay.
Council Chair Rapozo: I am going to stop that right now because we

are not talking about the candidate. We are not talking about the appointment.

Councilmember Hooser: This is about Board responsibilities with
regard to pesticides.

Council Chair Rapozo: You are not asking about Board
responsibilities. You are asking specifics.

Councilmember Hooser: Right.

Council Chair Rapozo: I do not want to do that. I do not want to go
there. We are addressing a nomination to the Board of Water Supply of Beth.

Councilmember Hooser: My point Council Chair Rapozo, if I could?

Council Chair Rapozo: Please.

Councilmember Hooser: When that incident occurred, it could occurr
tomorrow.

Council Chair Rapozo: And it could never occur again.

Councilmember Hooser: Right. It could occur tomorrow and if that

happens, the Manager of the Department of Water would have to make a decision,
the Board would have to make a decision, and the presence of somebody on the Board
whose company manufactures, sells, and uses that chemical would, in my opinion,
influence the decision or has the potential to influence it.

Council Chair Rapozo: I said your opinions should be saved for
discussion because right now, we are talking about...
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Councilmember Hooser: I am just responding to you cutting off debate.

Council Chair Rapozo: If you have a question of the speaker about
the appointment, this is appropriate because that is what today’s agenda item is
about. If you want to discuss the Department of Water policies as it relates to
testing...I do not know how this all of sudden become a pesticide appointment. As I
am reading the Department of Water Article 17, the Board is responsible for so much
more, about the funding, about the implementation, about the management, and we
are not even going there. We are not even asking Beth about any experience about
her management experience. We are talking about pesticides. I do not want to go
there right now. If you have an issue, then again, you can state it in your opinion. If
that 1s what is going to cause you to vote one way or another, fine. But we have the
Department Head here. If you have a question on him as it directly relates to the
appointment of the candidate, then please ask. But if you want to use this
opportunity to talk about issues of past, I am not going allow that. That is just not
going to happen today. We can post another item if you want to have that discussion,
but we are not going to do that today, not in an interview for an appointment.
Councilmember Chock.

Councilmember Chock: I concede.
Council Chair Rapozo: Councilmember Yukimura.
Councilmember Yukimura: I just want to take issue, Council Chair

Rapozo, because I think that the responsibility of the Board is related to how a board
member would act in the situations in which a board member would act, and because
her employer does manufacture and work with pesticides, the question about the
Board’s decision about pesticides is very much related to her appointment.

Council Chair Rapozo: You asked the question. She said if there was
an appearance of conflict, she would go to the Board of Ethics.

Councilmember Yukimura: I know, but we are still wanting to understand
the role of the Board regarding pesticides, and that is completely relevant.

Council Chair Rapozo: Read Article 17.

Councilmember Yukimura: Article 17 tells about the various
responsibilities of the Board and we are focusing in on one (1) of the responsibilities...

Council Chair Rapozo: Right.

Councilmember Yukimura: ...which relates to pesticides.

Council Chair Rapozo: Understood, and I believe they answered that
enough times already.

Councilmember Yukimura: Well...

Council Chair Rapozo: Ask the question if you have one. If not, I am

going to release him because I am not going to have him sit up here. Do you have a
question for him?
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Councilmember Yukimura: No.

Council Chair Rapozo: Okay.

Councilmember Yukimura: I am wanting to say...

Council Chair Rapozo: We can have that discussion. Stop.
Councilmember Yukimura: Council Chair Rapozo.

Council Chair Rapozo: Does anybody have any questions for this

gentleman? Thank you. Does the Council have any other questions of anyone in the
County or any officials? If not, the rules are still suspended, and I am going to take
public testimony. Who is the first registered speaker?

JADE K. FOUNTAIN-TANIGAWA, County Clerk: Council Chair
Rapozo, the first registered speaker is Sandra Herndon, followed by Matthew
Bernabe.

SANDRA HERNDON: Good morning, Council. Sandra Herndon, for
the record. I am representing myself here, and I also represent a lot of people in the
community who are very concerned about the issue that we have been discussing and
re-discussing this morning. That issue is not going to go away. I very much
appreciate that Ms. Tokioka said that she feels she can be independent and will
recuse herself, but I think in speaking to Councilmember Chock’s point, there is a big
discrepancy within the community’s and the County government’s, which includes
the Board of Water Supply, opinions of what “transparency” is. I think the idea that
people who are polluters do not protect, and as far as I am concerned and many of the
people in our community, the job of the Board of Water Supply is to protect our
waters. It just seems like a blatant conflict of interest to me. A lot of people share
that opinion with me. As far as your comment, Council Chair Rapozo, about the fact
that many of the people that signed that petition or those E-mails were from
off-island, many of them have homes here. They may live somewhere else, but they
have a vested interest just like we have a vested interest in everything that happens
on the island, everything that happens on all of the islands and, in fact, on the planet.
The water is sacred. We need a Board of Water Supply that is committed to protecting
the waters, and I am just not sure that this candidate can do that. Thank you.

Council Chair Rapozo: Thank you. Next speaker. Mr. Bernabe.

MATTHEW BERNABE: Matt Bernabe, for the record. This i1s a
polarized one. I even thought about not speaking. I want to start off by saying is
this, on the surface, this is a no-brainer. Do not appoint this person. But if you
understand what is going on in current real-time and understood that the
Department of Water themselves understand the precedence set by the Supreme
Court case Kaua‘l Springs vs. Planning Department, I think this is a great
opportunity to bridge because no matter what anybody says, that property out there
is controlled by her employer. They are part of the discussion when it comes to where
we are going with water. It does not matter if you like it or not. The fact that she is
unaware of this is a red-flag for me. In fact, if I was Councilmember, I would ask to
defer one (1) more meeting, have her read it, send it to the Mayor, have them read it,
have everybody who is involved in it read it, and then come back and continue this
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discussion. I challenged the Department of Water almost a year ago, in this
discussion about this lawsuit. They went and read it. When I went and talked to
them, they actually changed and started this public campaign. I heard their language
change, not in every area, small steps. It is going to be a long road of conversion, but
the reality is this, the water trust says it has to be used. The reality is this, they have
control of the riparian banks that water flows in. I know she is controversial and I
have questions because I have not heard her say what her passion about it is or if this
1s somebody filling a seat. I am not still sold on that. I am not picking her or not
picking her. I am putting out information that has not been discussed at this table.
The other reality is this, we are going to talk about a subject coming up that I did
some investigation on that could be a potential pollutant to the public on that side,
and that is in our own backyard. We will get to that later. I am not going to say it
because it is not germane to this, but it kind of is. I would like to see her get a little
bit more educated on the facts and come up with a reason why she wants to. I have
not heard her say that. I have not heard a clear reason. Is it just a job or is there an
actual passion behind it like I or Councilmember Chock has? I have a real passion
for water, I know the laws, and I understand and I have faith in the Department of
Water. They convinced me. They won me over. Thank you.

Council Chair Rapozo: Thank you. Anyone else wishing to testify?

STEPHANIE IONA: Stephanie Iona for the record. I am a resident
of Waimea and I work for DOW Agrosciences, LLC. I was not going to come up
because I thought Beth’s record would speak for itself. I would really want to know
how we went from a family-oriented, sit at the table, talk story, and be together to
having a woman who worked for the County of Kaua‘l, who was one of you, who served
a Mayor and a Mayor that I knew before that, Mayor Bryan Baptiste, when I was
General Manager of the cottages. Several of you, whom one of you is Councilmember
Hooser, came to see me and talked about what was important for our island. I work
with this woman. I did not only work with her because of being a part of Kaua‘. She
came to me when I was the General Manager and she talked to me about values that
she had for our island. I sit here and I think of family. I have to tell you that this
morning I woke up and I am going tell you I had a very wonderful mentor, Reverend
Akaka. I prayed to him and I said “Father, tell me why I have to sit here?” He taught
me when you are in a canoe, you have to have one (1) focus and that focus is what it
is. What is her love? I know her love because she told me, aloha begins with me. Do
you remember that? If she worked for a mayor that believed that, that built a pool in
Waimea, that helped us do what we needed to do for our County, why would she not
take the best that she knows and provide that information in a very sound manner
because that is all she ever does? I worked with her on the Chamber Board. I sit in
government affairs committees with her. I stand next to her in every community
event when she is there giving of herself for Kaua‘i Made. I could not go to Hawai‘i
on the Hill. She went. She represented this County. She represented all of the
businesses from this County that went there. She helped set it up. She helped break
1t down. She walked through the hall. She asked for support for the County of Kaua‘.
If you do not know her, write a letter. If you know her, you have to have a defining
moment to sit here and say she is the best person for any board that is not being
compensated and a company for whatever reasons you might all have, that is
supporting her effort to support this County. She handed out onion seeds in Waimea,
she gave out backpacks, and she supports everything.

Council Chair Rapozo: I am sorry. I have to stop you.
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Ms. Iona: I know.

Council Chair Rapozo: That is your time.

Ms. Iona: I just need to tell you.

Council Chair Rapozo: Hang on real quick. Anybody else wishing to
testify? Who? Okay. I am going to have to ask you to come back.

Ms. Iona: That is alright. Thank you.

Council Chair Rapozo: Thank you. Are you testifying? Wait, hold on,
Matt.

LAURIE YOSHIDA: Laurie Yoshida, for the record. I am a

resident of Lihu‘e, but I am also employed on the west side. I have worked with Beth
since 1994, I think. No, I moved in 1994. 1995, 1996 when I went to work for the
Chamber of Commerce, Beth was working for Mayor Kusaka. She has worked for the
County for so many years and I understand that some people have a problem with
Syngenta. But as someone who also works for a seed company, also sits on the
Commission for this County, and sits on the Commission for the State, I have never
had my employer tell me “you must vote this way or that way” on any issue. If they
did and I did not agree with them, personally, I would quit because if a company
treated me that way and tried to influence me that way, that is not a company that I
would choose to work for. I know Beth and I have had discussions about issues with
this County and in our community, not just government issues, but community. She
has a passion. She lives here, she has family, she has raised her kids here, and she
1s committed to this County. She has already said she would recuse herself if there
1s a conflict. Syngenta is not on trial here. I fully support her appointment.

Council Chair Rapozo: Thank you.
Ms. Yoshida: I give my time to her. Thank you.
Council Chair Rapozo: Anyone else wishing to speak for the first

time? If not, Matt.

Mr. Bernabe: Matt Bernabe, for the record. I just want to
also add in that I would like to know her future plans for our water. I see Kaua‘
becoming an economic of export agriculture. What are her plans? What is her
understanding? This is not folding up chairs or traveling, this is real work. Does she
know anything about the riparian waterways and reservoirs that could be replaced
and reutilized as an economic driver? I mean, these are serious water issues and that
1s what I want to hear. I have not heard any of that. I just heard someone that loves
the County. I love the County, too. I really love the County. I am a big Kaua‘l boy,
Kaua‘i pride. What are we talking about here? I want to know what she knows about
that position because I know a lot about that position. I have done my homework. I
know a lot about what is going on. I just want to hear more substance and I did not
hear that. Thank you.
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Council Chair Rapozo: Thank you. Anyone else wishing to testify? If
not, we will call the meeting back to order. Is there any discussion? Councilmember
Hooser.

There being no further testimony, the meeting was called back to order, and
proceeded as follows:

Councilmember Hooser: Is this final discussion?
Council Chair Rapozo: Yes.
Councilmember Hooser: Okay. Thank you, Council Chair Rapozo. I

am unable to support the nominee. I want to say really clearly that I have no
problems or questions about the nominee’s character or integrity. I do not believe she
would let her company tell her what to do, anything against her character or
integrity. I think she is a hardworking dedicated member of our community, who has
served our community well. But having said that, I do not think she is the right
person for this position. I think there are lots of other positions which she can serve
well. I think given the history and the issue on this island, there are a tremendous
amount of people incredibly concerned about health, safety, and the environmental
impacts of pesticides. I think the Mayor’s choice shows a certain amount of
insensitivity to that and a certain tone-deafness to the mood of our community. It is
unfortunate, in my opinion. This is about inherent bias, in my opinion, and potential
conflicts and perception. There are four (4) appointed members just like you and I,

each of them have an inherent bias. We have a world view, a lens we look through.

There is a banker on the Board. The banker looks through the world as a banker’s
lens. He looks at money and he looks at balancing the budget. There is an attorney
on the Board. The attorney will look at it through that lens. There is a President of
the Farm Bureau on that Board, and that person is looking it through their lens. To
appoint a representative of a major chemical company...Syngenta is one of the largest
chemical companies in the world with an incredibly poor and egregious history
polluting water systems, drinking water systems, in Europe and in the United States.
Their chemicals, which they sell, use, and manufacture, have been found in Hawai‘’s
waters. There is no question about that. Those are facts. They paid over one hundred
five million dollars ($105,000,000) and more settling some lawsuits. When we all look
at the world differently, why did the Mayor not appointment a hydrologist who
understands where water comes from? Why was a conservationist, or an
environmentalist, or a teacher, or a cultural practitioner who looks at the world
through their lenses not appointed, rather than through the lens of business and
through a chemical company? There is no question.

I mentioned before that Atrazine was found in the drinking fountain at
Waimea Middle Canyon School. If the nominee is successfully appointed, which she
probably will be, even if she recuses herself, just by her presence, she has an influence
on other Board members and management. Syngenta’s world view will be “well, there
1s not that much” and “well, it only happens once in a while.” I would prefer to have
a world view sitting on the Board saying, “I want stricter testing,” “I want safer
water,” “I want to look closer at threats and impacts of this industry,” not someone
who represents the industry. At the end of the day, that is a big part of it. It is public
perception. I think we need to recognize the concerns of the community, recognize
the inherent conflicts, and inherent bias, if you would. It is not a question of character
or a question of integrity. It is a question of how someone looks at world to make
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their decisions. They will look at the world, to a large extent, by who they work for
and what their life experience 1s. I will be voting no and this is not a judgment on
anybody else’s vote. Again, I have great respect for the nominee and I wish I was not
in this position today to vote in opposition. Thank you.

Council Chair Rapozo: Thank you. Anyone else? Councilmember
Kaneshiro.
Councilmember Kaneshiro: I will make my comments brief. =~ What it

comes down to is integrity and accountability. Beth makes her own decisions. She is
not only an employee of Syngenta, but she is a resident of Kaua‘i, a mother, a family
member, and a friend to many residents. That is where my decision comes from. She
will make her own bed, so to say. She is there making her own decisions. If she
makes a bad decision, she will be criticized for it, but that is her own decision just
like decisions we make up here. We are criticized for the decisions we make up here.
Ultimately, it come downs to integrity and accountability. We talked about family,
values, and everything this morning. I do not think she has gotten as far as she has
gotten by throwing away her integrity or accountability. That is where my vote comes
from, what is her integrity and her accountability? Being on the Board, she will be
accountable. She will be accountable for all of her decisions. If she decides to recuse
herself from a conflict of interest, she is accountable for that. If she decides to sit on
it and try to vote and have it go to the Board of Ethics, she is accountable for that.
That is what it comes down to, integrity and accountability. I will be voting in support
of her nomination.

Council Chair Rapozo: Thank you. Councilmember Kuali‘.

Councilmember Kualii: I will add to Councilmember Kaneshiro’s
comments and say that as long as I have known Beth and seen her work, she has
been an outstanding manager, an outstanding spokesperson, and she has been
someone behind-the-scenes for the different mayors over the years, but she could
easily be the mayor herself. I think that highly of her qualifications, and back that
up with integrity, aloha, and genuine concern for family and community. That is
important. I think we need all of the our...and we probably do have that kind of
commissioners to be that kind of people that step forward and are willing to serve the
community and is doing it primarily from who they are as a person. I have to disagree
with the thing about inherent bias and to say that how someone looks at the world is
based on where they work. Please. I am fifty-four (54) years old, I have thirty (30)
or forty (40+) plus years of work experience, and that does not define me. I do not
even know how long Beth has worked for Syngenta. She has probably worked thirty
(30+) plus years of her life, and yes, you are influenced by the relationships you build
and the things that you learn at the jobs that you do. But your whole way that you
look at the world and your value system is based on many other things besides where
you work, starting with family and community. It is kind of embarrassing that we
have turned this into a political farce of sorts and that we have been talking about
Syngenta, community, and pesticides when we really should just be talking about
Beth, her qualifications, her integrity, her ability to serve, and her willingness to
serve. We need more people like Beth to step forward and be willing to serve this
County. Volunteer. We rely on that. We depend on that. Thank you.

Council Chair Rapozo: Anyone else? Councilmember Kagawa.
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Councilmember Kagawa: Thank you, Council Chair Rapozo. It is
unfortunate that we are kind of discussing Bill No. 2491 again and the agenda item
1s about Beth Tokioka and her appointment to the Board of Water Supply. Good
people can disagree. I believe Bill No. 2491 was the worst decision in the history of
Kaua‘i politics. Mauna Kea did a sixty-six (66) page opinion telling us that we had a
bill that was going to be ruled invalid, and it was. We do not have the expertise nor
jurisdiction to be deciding whether pesticides are harmful or not to our citizens and
whether the County should play a role. We do not have that jurisdiction. Mauna Kea
did a tremendous job in writing that opinion. I think partly why Bill No. 2491 passed
was because we heard from attorneys who were for the Bill saying that they were
going do the legal work pro bono. Did that happen? Fact, no. Another fact, we have
the cleanest drinking water in the United States. That is a fact. This talk about
whether we are drinking polluted water or not, I mean, let us look at facts. This is
not Europe. This is not wherever else we are talking about. We are talking about
Hawaiil. The fact of the matter is that one of the top engineers that Mr. Saiki has
was born and raised in Waimea. Do you think his engineers are not worried about
the quality of water where all of his family and friends are? I think the Board of
Water Supply is very concerned if allegations come up and they do their due diligence.
It is not the County Council’s job to be monitoring and micromanaging their job. But
the fact of the matter is that Beth is a tremendous asset to Kaua‘l. We are fortunate
that she has stepped up. Her character is top-notch. I believe that we do not need
an expert to be on the Board of Water Supply or someone who has some idea how we
can improve the Department of Water. What we need is people to make good
decisions, such as our Facility Reserve Charge (FRC) that went up nine thousand
dollars ($9,000) in one (1) year. Perhaps Beth will find a better solution to doing that.
Maybe that is why there is a lack of housing going on. Maybe it is the FRC. Maybe
we need to work some other way of going up gradually to the nine thousand
dollar ($9,000) increase. Maybe one thousand dollars ($1,000) a year or something.
I hope that Beth can look into those things and make our island better. I believe that
we do not need experts in this area or that area as we choose Board of Water Supply
members. What we need is people of good character who care about the island, care
about the future, and will help our Board of Water Supply move in that direction for
a better future. I will be supporting Beth. It is very unfortunate that we had to have
some of these Bill No. 2491 issues come up on this agenda item that is not relevant
to that. Thank you. Thank you, Council Chair Rapozo.

Council Chair Rapozo: Councilmember Chock.

Councilmember Chock: Thank you, Council Chair Rapozo. I lost sleep
again on this particular issue. I think public perception is really important and it is
something that we need to continue to do to build trust, and how we do that is really
important. I have had trouble mostly with these Boards and Commission
appointments in the past. We have had people like Kimo Keawe who has come up
who has a background in hotel industry sitting on the Planning Commission, that
being questioned as well. Yet, I know of his integrity and his perspective that I value
and have supported him. I feel to a large degree, some of those things have been a
good outcome for us in the County, which actually questions the process that we have
in selection that we might want to look at. This is no criticism of our Boards and
Commissions, but rather than perhaps there is a better vetting way that we can get
to more of a shared outcome that we are looking for. The fact is the Mayor makes the
decision on who he wants and we have to make our own decisions here. In this case,
I would probably have liked to see an environmentalist move forward to support the
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balance of the Board of Water Supply. I am conflicted in that sense, but here is where
1t starts to flip the switch for me and it is this, I take people for face-value. It does
not matter. If I work with a child in the school and they come from a family with a
bad reputation, I do not condemn that child. Do you know what I do? I embrace them
and work with them more. That is where I feel I am with this and that is not the only
reason. I have known Beth and I know Beth as not a one (1) issue kind of person. I
think she is very objective. I hold her in high regard and high integrity. One (1) of the
things that she said, which I want to reiterate is what I do i1s I take people for what
they say and what they follow through on, and I follow that. That is my expectation
here out of anyone that comes on to our Boards and Commissions. I will be watching
that closely from this seat because like Mr. Bernabe, I really agree these water issues
are really important and dear to my heart. I will be asking for all of the various
diverse stakeholders to be at the table to talk about these needs as we move forward
because they are too important to the future. That being said, I think that she will
get my support today to move forward. Thank you.

Council Chair Rapozo: Anyone else? Councilmember Yukimura.

Councilmember Yukimura: This, too, for me has been a very difficult
situation. After the interview with Beth, I felt like I would vote for her. After getting
six hundred (600) E-mails, two hundred thirty (230) of them being from Kaua‘i
opposing her, not because I question Beth’s integrity or qualifications, but because I
am concerned about public trust of institutions. I thought I should vote against her
appointment not anything because of her personally, but because of the connection to
Syngenta and the amount of distrust that causes in our community. It pains me
greatly that we have a divided community with each side thinking that they are right
and many unwilling to really listen or reach out to the other side. It is in this
environment that the Mayor has chosen to make this appointment, which further
divides our community. I think it was not a well-advised appointment and this has
nothing to do with Beth because I believe in her honesty, integrity, intelligence, and
management expertise. I want to say that many years ago, Donald Kennedy
voluntarily stepped down as President of Stanford University after a federal lawsuit
was brought because of the violation of federal grant requirements. I was shocked
because President Kennedy was such a good leader and he did not do anything wrong
personally, but he said that there was a lack of public confidence that affected his
ability to lead and his effectiveness as a leader. He taught me about the importance
of public perception. The problem is that people are seeing Beth as a stereotype and
they do not know who she is. Today, I felt her words about not letting her connection
with Syngenta override her reputation. I heard that she said she will be an
independent citizen who looks at the issues in the public interest and that she would
recuse herself if there is any conflict of interest. I want people to know that conflict
of interest is not something you can avoid. You cannot be so good that you will
overcome public conflict. When I was on this Council and my husband’s employer
zoning came up before the Council, I did not want to vote for it, but I was not allowed
to recuse myself. I could have voted against my husband’s employer just to look like
I was not voting against the public interest even though it might have been in the
public’s interest. There has to be recusal and she said she would do that.

Council Chair Rapozo: Thank you. Anyone else? This is your last
chance. I will speak last. If anyone else has anything else, now is the time. If not,
first of all, let me apologize to Beth for having you to go through this kind of ordeal.
I will say that we have an attorney that was mentioned earlier on the Board of Water
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Supply. He is not there. He was not there appointed because he was an attorney,
but he happens to be an attorney, an attorney who represents a ton of special interests
on this island. We have one of the big shots from one of the biggest engineering firms
on Kaua‘i, huge special interest. They did not have to go through what you went
through. I think Laurie said, as she walked away, that Syngenta is not on trial here
and I think that is kind of what happened today. Character and credibility is all that
matters. I do not care where you work. I mean, if I have no doubt in your character,
Beth, if I have no doubt of your integrity, honesty, and credibility, then how can I vote
no? If I believe that you are of the highest character, the highest credibility, the
highest integrity, and the highest honesty, then I do not have to worry about any
potential conflicts because you are going to do the right thing, if I believe as I say I
do. I have known Beth a long time and I can tell you that I have seen Beth... nobody
1s going to dispute this. Beth, on many occasions has actually ran the County whether
1t was in absence of the Mayor or telling the Mayor what should be done. There has
been three (3) mayors. We all know that. Nobody is going to say it, but I will say it
because I know it happened. I trust Beth with the most important decisions of this
County. We do not always agree. We are never always going to agree, but never once
in any decision or position that Beth has taken was ever for personal agenda. Never
ever. Close to six hundred fifty (650), I stopped counting, E-mails from people that
do not even know Beth Tokioka and have no clue who she is. But Center for Food
Safety put out this template that “hey, put your name, address, and E-mail and we
will send it out for you.” It says that the lawsuit was to challenge the prohibition to
disclose information. The lawsuit was about preemption. The lawsuit was about who
had the authority to regulate. That is what the lawsuit was about. How many of
these people that sent in E-mails even know what is going on Kaua‘i? It is
unfortunate. It was easy because everyone was exactly the same so I did not have to
read six hundred fifty (650). I just looked at where they were from. Really. 1
understand some of them may have a second home here or whatever the case may be,
maybe they visit. I do not know. The reality is they do not know Beth. That is the
reality. They have no idea who Beth is. They have no idea what Beth has done for
this community over the last three (3) decades. That is offensive, if you ask me. Just
because I saw a big thing on the internet and “oh, yes, I am going to get involved.”
Every minute, two (2) minutes, and three (3) minutes the E-mail were coming and
coming and coming and coming and coming. Wow, it is a pretty cool tool for
marketing, but how many of those people knew Beth Tokioka personally and how
many of them knew her history? Very few. The Board of Water Supply has such a
huge responsibility and Matt talked about you should know everything about
everything. Do you know what? That would disqualify many people from running
from for Council. It is not meant to be funny. I am just saying when you run for
Council, do you know everything about everything about everything in the County?
Absolutely not. Did we expect the attorney when he came up here for his appointment
to the Board of Water Supply to know everything about everything about everything
that was going on in the Board of Water Supply? Absolutely not. They have a team.
Thank you to the Board of Water Supply. I have to say that because they have done
a hell of a job. I think Councilmember Kagawa talked about all of the other collateral
1ssues, the affordable housing and everything is tied back to water, and we did not
talking about that. We talked about pesticides, which is a critical issue, but do you
know what? To assume that one (1) person on the Board is going to have that much
power to make it right so that Syngenta can pollute the waters? Beth, thank you.
Thank you for serving. Thank you for being willing to serve. Thank you, Jay, for
putting this all together. I expect a lot of good things out of the Board with your
appointment. That is what I am going to say. Thank you. With that, roll call.
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Councilmember Hooser: Council Chair Rapozo, I have a question.
Council Chair Rapozo: Go ahead.

Councilmember Hooser: The six hundred forty (640)...

Council Chair Rapozo: It 1s about six hundred fifty (650) now.
Councilmember Hooser: Six hundred fifty (650), I know there were

several hundred Kaua‘i residents. There were many names that I recognized of
people in the community on that list. I asked staff to go over the list and enter the
Kaua‘® names into the record that did submit testimony on this issue
(See Attachment 1). I just wanted to say that for the record. There were several
hundred Kaua‘t names on that list. Thank you.

Council Chair Rapozo: I did not think we would have six hundred
fifty (650), but this was just between 2:34 p.m. on Monday to 3:15 p.m., and that is it.
I was going to print them all and then I was like, do you know what? It is just not
stopping. I have not seen anything like it. It was just boom, boom. I said, “I am not
going to print it.” I think that is fair. I believe all should be entered whether from
Kaua‘i or not. I just believe that it is testimony. I just have a hard time validating
1t, number one, and the process that was used, I think, like I said, it is a great tool. I
might have to use it. Thank you for that, Councilmember Hooser. With that, roll
call.

The motion for adoption of Resolution No. 2016-49 was then put, and carried
by the following vote:

FOR ADOPTION: Chock, Kagawa, Kaneshiro, Kualif,

Yukimura, Rapozo TOTAL - 6%,
AGAINST ADOPTION: Hooser TOTAL -1,
EXCUSED & NOT VOTING: None TOTAL -0,
RECUSED & NOT VOTING: None TOTAL - 0.

(*Pursuant to Rule No. 5(b) of the Rules of the Council of the County of Kauaf,
Councilmember Yukimura was noted as silent, but shall be recorded as an affirmative
vote for the motion.)

Council Chair Rapozo: With that, let us take a ten (10) minute recess
please. I need a break.

There being no objections, the meeting recessed at 10:24 a.m.

The meeting reconvened at 10:33 a.m., and proceeded as follows:

(Councilmember Yukimura was noted as not present.)

Council Chair Rapozo: C 2016-161, C 2016-162, and C 2016-163 will
be done after the Executive Sessions. I have a question for the Council. Can we take

C 2016-164 really quick?

There being no objections, C 2016-164 was taken out of order.
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LEGAL DOCUMENTS:

C 2016-164 Communication (06/13/2016) from the Fire Chief, requesting
Council approval of the indemnification provisions contained in the Hale Halawai
‘Ohana ‘O Hanalei, Hanalei Community Center Facility Use Guidelines and
Application Forms, for the use of their facility to conduct the Community Emergency
Response Training (CERT) program: Councilmember Kagawa moved to approve
C 2016-164, seconded by Councilmember Kaneshiro.

Council Chair Rapozo: Is there any discussion? Is there any public
testimony?

There being no objections, the rules were suspended to take public testimony.

There being no one present to provide testimony, the meeting was called back
to order, and proceeded as follows:

The motion to approve C 2016-164 was then put, and unanimously carried
(Pursuant to Rule No. 5(b) of the Rules of the Council of County of Kauaf,
Councilmember Yukimura was noted as silent (not present), but shall be
recorded as an affirmative for the motion).

Council Chair Rapozo: Thank you. For C 2016-165, we do not have
anyone available today from the Office of Elderly Affairs. They are away. It is
basically Memorandums of Understanding and Network Partner Agreements. Is
anyone interested in having the Office of Elderly Affairs here? All of the agreements
are attached. If there is no objection, I would just ask that we go ahead and approve
this so that they can move forward with it. With that, can you read the item, please?

C 2016-165 Communication (06/22/2016) from the Executive on Aging,
requesting Council approval to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)
and Network Partner Agreement with various community organizations, which will
be involved with the Aging and Disability Resource Center (ADRC):

e (21) Memorandums of Understanding Between the County of Kaua‘
Agency on Elderly Affairs and named Community Partner; and

e County of Kaua‘t Agency on Elderly Affairs Network Partner
Agreement.

Councilmember Kagawa moved to approve C 2016-165, seconded by
Councilmember Kaneshiro.

Council Chair Rapozo: Is there any discussion? Is there any public
testimony?

There being no objections, the rules were suspended to take public testimony.

There being no one present to provide testimony, the meeting was called back
to order, and proceeded as follows:
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The motion to approve C 2016-165 was then put, and unanimously carried
(Pursuant to Rule No. 5(b) of the Rules of the Council of County of Kauaf,
Councilmember Yukimura was noted as silent (not present), but shall be
recorded as an affirmative for the motion).

Council Chair Rapozo: Motion carried. Let us just go right through,
Jade.

CLAIM:

C 2016-166 Communication (07/08/2016) from the County Clerk,
transmitting a claim filed against the County of Kaua‘l by Joanna Martin, for
damages to her vehicle, pursuant to Section 23.06, Charter of the County of Kaua‘.

Councilmember Kuali‘t moved to refer C 2016-166 to the County Attorney’s
Office for disposition and/or report back to the Council, seconded by
Councilmember Kaneshiro.

Council Chair Rapozo: Is there any discussion? Is there any public
testimony?

There being no objections, the rules were suspended to take public testimony.

There being no one present to provide testimony, the meeting was called back
to order, and proceeded as follows:

The motion to refer C 2016-166 to the County Attorney’s Office for disposition
and/or report back to the Council was then put, and unanimously carried
(Pursuant to Rule No. 5(b) of the Rules of the Council of County of Kauaf,
Councilmember Yukimura was noted as silent (not present), but shall be
recorded as an affirmative for the motion).

Council Chair Rapozo: Thank you. Committee Reports.

COMMITTEE REPORTS:

PUBLIC WORKS / PARKS & RECREATION COMMITTEE:

A report (No. CR-PWPR 2016-08) submitted by the Public Works / Parks &
Recreation Committee, recommending that the following be Received for the Record:

“PWPR 2016-07 Communication (06/09/2016) from Committee Chair
Kagawa, requesting the presence of the Acting County Engineer, to address
landscape maintenance concerns around County facilities,”

A report (No. CR-PWPR 2016-09) submitted by the Public Works / Parks &
Recreation Committee, recommending that the following be Received for the Record:

“PWPR 2016-08 Communication (06/28/2016) from Committee Chair
Kagawa, requesting the presence of the Director of Parks & Recreation, to
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provide a briefing regarding the issues of maintenance and health concerns at
the Eastside Happy Dog Playground in Wailua Homesteads,”

Councilmember Kualii moved for approval of the reports, seconded by
Councilmember Chock.

Council Chair Rapozo: Is there any discussion? Is there any public
testimony?

There being no objections, the rules were suspended to take public testimony.

There being no one present to provide testimony, the meeting was called back
to order, and proceeded as follows:

The motion for approval of the reports was then put, and unanimously carried
(Pursuant to Rule No. 5(b) of the Rules of the Council of County of Kauaf,
Councilmember Yukimura was noted as silent (not present), but shall be
recorded as an affirmative for the motion).

Council Chair Rapozo: Next item.

PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE:

A report (No. CR-PS 2016-04) submitted by the Public Safety Committee,
recommending that the following be Approved on second and final reading:

“Bill No. 2629 — A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND
SECTION 22-8.2, KAUAT COUNTY CODE 1987, AS AMENDED, RELATING
TO SMOKING IN A MOTOR VEHICLE,”

Councilmember Kualii moved for approval of the report, seconded by
Councilmember Kaneshiro.

Council Chair Rapozo: Is there any discussion? Is there any public
testimony?

There being no objections, the rules were suspended to take public testimony.

There being no one present to provide testimony, the meeting was called back
to order, and proceeded as follows:

The motion for approval of the report was then put, and unanimously carried
(Pursuant to Rule No. 5(b) of the Rules of the Council of County of Kauaf,
Councilmember Yukimura was noted as silent (not present), but shall be
recorded as an affirmative for the motion).

Council Chair Rapozo: Thank you. At this time, if there are no
objections, the Department of Public Works is here. They are the next item. Go
ahead.

There being no objections, Resolution No. 2016-51 was taken out of order.
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Resolution No. 2016-51 — RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OR
THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE OF THE COUNTY OF KAUAT TO ENTER INTO
AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH THE STATE OF HAWAII,
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH FOR A LOAN FROM THE STATE WATER
POLLUTION CONTROL REVOLVING FUND FOR THE KEKAHA LANDFILL
LATERAL EXPANSION CELL 2, PROJECT NO. NPS0047-12: Councilmember
Kaneshiro moved for adoption of Resolution No. 2016-51, seconded by
Councilmember Kuali‘.

(Councilmember Yukimura was noted as present.)

Council Chair Rapozo: Is there any discussion? Councilmember
Kagawa, do you want the Department of Public Works to come up? Okay. I will
suspend the rules.

There being no objections the rules were suspended.
(Councilmember Kuali'i was noted as not present.)

Councilmember Kagawa: Thank you, Council Chair Rapozo. Being that
this 1s a one-time approval because it is a Resolution and therefore only needs
approval at the Council Meeting, instead of going to Committee because it seems like
as I talked to the Department of Public Works that it is really a win-win for us. We
are saving approximately three percent (3%) by getting this State loan, which is at
one percent (1%), but I would like the experts to tell us about a little bit this and what
the benefit 1s. Thank you, Council Chair Rapozo.

Council Chair Rapozo: Okay.

LYLE TABATA, Acting County Engineer: = Council Chair and Members of
the Council, Lyle Tabata, Acting County Engineer. The Self-Revolving Fund (SRF)
loan which we are seeking approval for will be used for the final engineering design
and then the construction of the lateral expansion of the Kekaha Landfill. This will
be the last expansion of this landfill proposed.

Council Chair Rapozo: Thank you. Are there any further questions?

Mr. Tabata: The value is thirteen million eight hundred
thousand dollars ($13,800,000).

Council Chair Rapozo: Okay. The fact that we go with the SRF, the
Revolving Fund, saves the County?

Mr. Tabata: Right. It is a one percent (1%) loan over
twenty (20) years.

Council Chair Rapozo: Versus, if we went to bond?

Mr. Tabata: It 1s a little over four percent (4%), from what

I understand.
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Council Chair Rapozo: So it 1s a definite savings for the County. I
appreciate you folks finding that option. Thank you. Are there any other questions
for the Department of Public Works? Go ahead.

Councilmember Kagawa: Is there any savings in the current budget? I
do not know if you need the Department of Finance here. Did we have specific moneys
set aside as we are going to pay through the bond? And now that that has changed,
does that lead to any savings that will be reflected in the current budget?

KEITH SUGA, Capital Improvement Project (CIP) Program Manager: Keith
Suga, Department of Public Works. Good question, Councilmember Kagawa.
Currently in the Capital Improvement Project (CIP) budget or in the Fiscal Year 2017
budget, there are no funds allocated for final design or construction. This particular
project was something looking forward at the potential next bond issuance of
including it. With this opportunity coming forward, obviously, it is a better
opportunity to fund through SRF versus bonds. At this time, there are no funds
allocated currently.

Councilmember Kagawa: There are no savings that will be reflected in
the current budget because there was no dollar figure set to pay the bond yet?

Mr. Suga: Correct.

Councilmember Kagawa: Thank you. Thank you, Council Chair
Rapozo.

Council Chair Rapozo: Are there any other questions?

Councilmember Yukimura.

Councilmember Yukimura: Actually, they are savings from the future
budgets?
Mr. Suga: That is true. If we were to pursue funding

this effort through bond, yes, correct.
Councilmember Yukimura: Thank you.

Council Chair Rapozo: Thank you. Are there any other questions? If
not, thank you very much, gentlemen. Anyone wishing to testify on this?
Mr. Bernabe.

Mr. Bernabe: Matt Bernabe, for the record. I would like to
first start off by saying I do actually support it and I am glad that they are coming in
and asking for a resolution to expand. I will commend them for doing it the correct
way. Let us start off right there. Second of all, when I go and do an issue, I do not
get a degree. I am not an expert, right?

(Councilmember Kuali'i was noted as present.)

Mr. Bernabe: I am just a human living on this island on this
planet, that pays attention and does my homework, whether if I have to cook a meal,
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mow my yard, look for the water around it, or whatever it is. I get involved. A certain
level of education makes you have a better informed decision. What I want to add on
this issue 1s I went out and did a little homework out at the Kekaha Landfill. What
I found out was there is a lot of room for improvement. For one, there is some reason
we do not break skips down, that is vertical airspace. It is something about nails. I
did not have as much time to get the exact answer and plus, I am not an expert. But
I have a general idea that if we stack one hundred (100) skips, that is vertical airspace
if it is not broken down. I trim trees. When you take the chainsaw and cut the trees
down, you reduce the airspace and you actually drop the height of the rubbish pile.
Anyone that does yardwork pays attention and knows that. They would be qualified
to make decisions like that. When I went there, I saw airspace and a company that
guts things and does not recycle. I saw whole sinks from hotels, I saw evidence of
when they bring the hangers from going back all the way back to Liberty House and
now Macy’s continues it. Why are they not trying to sell those hangers? I was the
only hospital that dumps their medical waste, and they say they radiate it, is Wilcox
Medical Center. All of the private hospitals takes care of their own, or is that a
private hospital? Is that why they are dumping it? I cannot remember what it was.
I do not follow who owns the hospitals. But it has something to do with the fact that
they are unique compared to the other one. There is a lot of room to maximize the
space that is there if we implemented some of the policies that I am sure we have, for
recycling and whatnot. There are a lot of cans going into the regular rubbish that the
workers go and somewhat do it. I do support that they came up and are asking for
these funds correctly. I do believe we need to expand so that we can get a handle on
the current situation, but I really think we really need to look at how we could either
work on the existing policies or at least practice the ones that are there. Thank you
very much.

Council Chair Rapozo: Thank you. Anyone else wishing to testify? If
not, I will call the meeting back to order. Is there any further discussion?
Councilmember Kagawa.

There being no further testimony, the meeting was called back to order, and
proceeded as follows:

Councilmember Kagawa: Thank you. I would like to thank the
Department of Public Works for this savings that is going to be met by going with
this SRF instead of just using bonds. I think one could say that if they did not take
the actual step in searching for this, it is not like their personal money if you save for
your own self, you are going to take the measures and check all around. What is the
place that I can maximize my savings? But I just want to hand it to the Department
of Public Works for doing this and encourage continued efforts like this to try and
save as much as we can wherever we can, and do more with less. Thank you, Council
Chair Rapozo.

Council Chair Rapozo: Thank you. Anyone else? If not, roll call.
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The motion for adoption of Resolution No. 2016-51 was then put, and carried
by the following vote:

FOR ADOPTION: Chock, Hooser, Kagawa, Kaneshiro,
Kuali‘l, Yukimura, Rapozo TOTAL -7,
AGAINST ADOPTION: None TOTAL -0,
EXCUSED & NOT VOTING: None TOTAL -0,
RECUSED & NOT VOTING: None TOTAL - 0.
Ms. Fountain-Tanigawa: Seven (7) ayes.
Council Chair Rapozo: Next item, please.

Resolution No. 2016-50 — RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING A COUNTY BUS
STOP ALONG KAWAIHAU ROAD, KAWAIHAU DISTRICT, COUNTY OF KAUA‘T

Council Chair Rapozo: Can I get a motion?

Councilmember Kuali® moved for adoption of Resolution No. 2016-50,
seconded by Councilmember Kagawa.

Council Chair Rapozo: Thank you. Is there any discussion? Go
ahead.

Councilmember Chock: I have a question for the Administration.

Council Chair Rapozo: Okay. I will suspend the rules without any

objections. We are going to go to Resolution No. 2016-48 right after this.
There being no objections, the rules were suspended.

Councilmember Chock: I have a real quick question, Council Chair
Rapozo, if I could?

Council Chair Rapozo: Okay.

Councilmember Chock: Thank you. I just got the map, so thank you.
My main concern is safety and I wanted to see if you could speak to that in terms of
its location. It is a busy road. Also, if I am not mistaken, I know there is a sidewalk
on the opposite side.

(Councilmember Hooser as noted as not present.)

Councilmember Chock: Can you confirm if there is a sidewalk? 1 do
not think there is a sidewalk on the side of the bus stop you are referring to. Is that
correct? Those are the two (2) questions that I have.

MICHAEL MOULE, Chief of the Engineering Division: For the
record, Michael Moule, Chief of the Engineering Division, Department of Public
Works. The bus stop is on the south side of Kawaihau Road, the side where the
sidewalk is located, in this case.
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Councilmember Chock: Sorry.

Mr. Moule: I think there already is actually a bus stop on
the other side in this vicinity, but not on this side. There is also an area adjacent to
the travel lane of pavement/gravel that may be eight (8) to ten (10) feet wide. I could
pull up images. I did pull them up just in case you want to see them so that you can
see what that looks like. It is just off of an aerial image. Some bus stops do not have
pullouts and some sort of have a pullout. In the long-term, there may be an effort to
put a shelter here, but that is not planned at this time. The Transportation Agency
recognized the need and demand in this area. I believe this is intended to be an
on-call bus stop in the short-term and not heavily-used. But there is a lot of activity
with the food mart, the athletic club, and the stores in the area. That is why they
requested to us to add a bus stop in this vicinity. We found this was the safest spot
that we could put it in this area.

Councilmember Chock: I have a follow-up.
Council Chair Rapozo: Go ahead.
Councilmember Chock: You said that there may be a shelter in the

future. Is there room for that? Can we already expect there is a foundation for that
to occur?

Mr. Moule: We have not looked at the design details
directly, but there is some additional right-of-way area outside of the travel lane
where a shelter could likely be built. We have several versions of the shelters that
we are rolling out these days and the smallest one, the narrowest one, I believe would
fit here. We have not measured that specifically, but there is enough room there that
we could likely get it in there in future if that is necessary.

Councilmember Chock: Thank you.

Council Chair Rapozo: I just have a follow-up real quick. You said it
1s an on-call bus stop?

Mr. Moule: That was my understanding of the original
request from the Transportation Agency, to where some bus stops where they stop
only if there is someone waiting or somebody in the bus makes a request to stop there.
They do not always pulling in every single time, for example, but it is because it is
along the road, it is easy to do that with this case.

(Councilmember Hooser was noted as present.)

Mr. Moule: I do not know that for sure. My recollection is
that when they first came to us with this request, that was what was requested. That
1s what they told us. This was not going to be used that frequently.

Council Chair Rapozo: Okay.

Mzr. Moule: The bus goes by every day...

Council Chair Rapozo: I understand.
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Mr. Moule: ...but it does not always stop.
Council Chair Rapozo: Was this requested by the food mart?
Mr. Moule: No. The request came to us from the

Transportation Agency.

Council Chair Rapozo: Okay.
Mr. Moule: I do not know the details of exactly why.
Council Chair Rapozo: I was just curious what “on-call” is. I hear

what you are saying. If someone is standing there, then we can...

Mr. Tabata: Lyle Tabata, Acting County Engineer.
Another example of on-call is at K-mart.

Council Chair Rapozo: Okay.

Mr. Tabata: That 1s an on-call bus stop.

Council Chair Rapozo: Councilmember Kagawa.

Councilmember Kagawa: I think Councilmember Chock kind of covered

it. This map does not really do justice because it does not show the shoulder area. I
am wondering on your site visitations, on Kawaihau Road, there are several bus stops
along that long stretch. I think for the most part, there is enough room for the bus to
completely pull to the side. I am wondering if this bus stop allow the same thing for
the bus to completely go on the shoulder and vehicles can pass by, or is it in an area
that the bus is going to be sticking out on the road?

Mr. Moule: There is a shoulder. It should be wide enough.
I can show you the imagery online if we want to bring the screen down.

Councilmember Kagawa: It 1s okay.

Mr. Moule: It is not fully well-paved at this point. It is

somewhat paved. It is hard to tell exactly looking at it. But there is room to pull over
in this area, which is why we chose this particular spot versus up and down the road.

Councilmember Kagawa: Because of the shoulder area?

Mr. Moule: Yes, because there already is a shoulder area
there.

Councilmember Kagawa: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Council Chair
Rapozo.

Council Chair Rapozo: Do you have photographs?
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Mr. Moule: The only photographs I have are the aerial
1mageries and the street view online. But I do not have any photographs of the site
here in front of me.

Council Chair Rapozo: Councilmember  Kaneshiro and then
Councilmember Yukimura.

Councilmember Kaneshiro: My question is what would this cost and do we
have it covered in our budget?

Mr. Moule: What is being installed right now is simply
signs, and that is covered in the Roads Division operating budget.

Councilmember Kaneshiro: Okay. Thank you.

Council Chair Rapozo: Councilmember Yukimura.

Councilmember Yukimura: Just for future reference, I think it would be

helpful to have the Transportation Agency here so that if we have questions regarding
the need or where the request came from, they could answer those questions, just in
the future. Thank you.

Council Chair Rapozo: Thank you. Are there any other questions for
the Department of Public Works? If not, thank you very much. The rules are still
suspended. Is there any public testimony? Mr. Bernabe.

Mr. Bernabe: Matt Bernabe, for the record. I support
Increasing the bus stops, absolutely. I was under the impression that an on-call stop
was if somebody was on the bus and said “I want to get off here” or somebody was at
the stop. In Honolulu, they do not stop at every stop. They only stop if somebody is
ringing the bell or there is somebody standing outside. With that said, I would also
like to stretch and talk about the whole route in general. On the bottom, I am
handicapped. The way the bus stops are now, I have had this actually happen, they
block the handicap vehicle in when they stop and take the break at the bathroom.
That is where they take their break and go into the bathroom. In a way, that is false
imprisonment. I did not actually get mad. I actually sat there, waited, and listened
to the radio. Then when the person left, I left. I did not care. However, we should
really look at that route and the bottom stop as well as all of these other stops because
right now, there is no shelter, and the way they pull up and parallel behind the stalls,
they do block you in. That is all I wanted to point out. Thank you.

Councilmember Yukimura: Excuse me.
Council Chair Rapozo: Go ahead.
Councilmember Yukimura: I am sorry. I do not understand a word you

said. Could you explain?

Mr. Bernabe: The handicap stalls at the baseball park,
when you pull in are this way, facing the park.

Councilmember Yukimura: Are these the bathrooms?
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Mr. Bernabe: No. There is a bathroom that is in the park
where the County workers go in and take their break where they use the bathroom,
I believe. I have seen them do it. I do not think it is the only one. Maybe they do it
at Kapahi as well. I do not know.

Council Chair Rapozo: The agenda item is for Kawaihau Road. You
are talking about the base of Olohena Road.

Mr. Bernabe: Yes, but that goes through Kawaihau. I am
assuming that is the same route because it does not go to Wailua.

Council Chair Rapozo: Yes, but the bus stop that is being proposed is
on Kawaihau Road.

Mr. Bernabe: I understand, but the Kapahi route comes
down and goes to that park. It is still germane to the route. The bus parallel parks
behind the stalls. That is all it is. If you are parked in a stall like this, the bus parks
like this.

Council Chair Rapozo: What he is saying is at the bottom of Olohena
Road by the tennis court and skateboards park, there are all of the stalls. There is a
handicap stall and the bus drivers are parking blocking him in...

Mr. Bernabe: Yes.

Council Chair Rapozo: ...which there is somebody from the
Transportation Agency here. If you can go back and tell your bus drivers...you do not
have to come up. When you go back, tell your bus drivers, “If there is a car parked in
any stall whether they are handicap or not, do not park behind the stall.” I do not
care how quick the “shi shi” is. Do not do that. If you do that with a personal car,
guess what? You get a ticket. Just please tell your drivers “park someplace where
you are not blocking anybody.” I do have a question and I think these would be for
the Department of Public Works because Mr. Bernabe brings up point about the
handicapped. Are these Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) accessible, and if they
are not, are we legally able to put it up, because that is what I hear all the time from
the Administration. “We cannot do that because we have to make it ADA accessible
and that is going to cost way too much money.” In this case, is that bus stop ADA
accessible now that we are creating a bus stop?

Mr. Moule: Again, the area is paved to gravel, which is a
firm slip-resistant surface adjacent to the travel lane. If someone did need to use a
wheelchair there, I believe it is possible to unload. They might have to stop further
out than they otherwise might, but they would be able to unload somebody at that
location and be able to get where they need to go.

Council Chair Rapozo: Are we required to get the ADA office to take
a look at this location? I did not even think about it until Matt brought it up.

Mr. Moule: No. For the Disability and Communication
Access Board (DCAB), we are not. If we were doing a design of something like
actually putting in a shelter, we would be required to do that. But since we are not
doing anything besides installing signs, we are not required to.
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Council Chair Rapozo: We are creating a bus stop for people and we
need to make sure it is accessible to everyone, right? That is what I was told over the
years. I just want to make sure that we are not violating that.

Mr. Moule: Again, we choose this location because it has
this additional shoulder area, which makes it so that there is a place to unload.

Council Chair Rapozo: Are you saying that it is ADA accessible? Itis
either yes or no. If you do not know, then we need to check.

Mr. Moule: I cannot confirm that it meets the exact two
percent (2%) grade and size of a bus stop, but there is an area that could be used to
unload a wheelchair.

Council Chair Rapozo: Okay. Lyle, are we required to make it
wheelchair accessible?

Mr. Tabata: We are in the process. We have received
funds to do a study to examine all of the our bus stops in the whole County in the
effort to get them all to be accessible with routes to access the bus stops that we have.

Council Chair Rapozo: Is this premature? Are you comfortable? Are
the attorneys comfortable? I just want to make sure.

Mr. Tabata: I believe from what Mr. Moule just said, we
are, but we can do more follow-up and respond.

Council Chair Rapozo: Thank you. Are there any other questions? If
not, thank you. Anyone else? If not, call meeting back to order.

There being no objections, the meeting was called back to order, and proceeded
as follows:

Council Chair Rapozo: Is there any further discussion? I will just say
that I have concerns now with the ADA issue. I guess I am not convinced that we do
not have to. I think we do. From what I have been told over the years, we do. If we
have some existing bus stops that we have to address, that is another issue. But as
far as putting one in, I would ask that we defer this to get that clarified with DCAB
just to make sure. Councilmember Yukimura.

Councilmember Yukimura: I concur.

Council Chair Rapozo: Thank you. Anyone else? With that, does
anybody have any objections to deferring it for two (2) weeks to get that confirmation
from our ADA coordinator’s office? With that, if there i1s no more discussion, I will

entertain a motion to defer.

Councilmember Chock moved to defer Resolution No. 2016-50, seconded by
Councilmember Yukimura, and unanimously carried.

Council Chair Rapozo: Motion carried. Thank you. Next item.
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Resolution No. 2016-48, Draft 1 — RESOLUTION PROPOSING A CHARTER
AMENDMENT TO ESTABLISH A COUNTY ROADS RESURFACING /
RECONSTRUCTION BACKLOG FUND: Councilmember Kuali‘i moved for adoption
of Resolution No. 2016-48, Draft 1, seconded by Councilmember Hooser.

Council Chair Rapozo: Thank you. With that, I will let
Councilmember Kuali‘ explain his Resolution.

Councilmember Kualii: To explain it a little bit again, basically, this
is a proposal for a charter amendment so the voters have the opportunity to vote on
creating a backlog of the County Roads Resurfacing / Reconstruction Backlog Fund.
When we had the discussions of the General Excise and Surcharge Tax (GET)
creating that new tax, as well as during the budget, it was painfully made aware and
for probably the last year or so, the one hundred million dollar ($100,000,000) backlog
in roads resurfacing and reconstruction, and the need for this County, whether by the
Administration and/or this Council, during budget make the funds available, and find
the funds for the added road maintenance and repair that we do not have in our usual
annual budget. While I know this is something that can be done by the Council with
four (4) votes, in order to put it to the public, to the voters, it takes five (5) votes. This
proposal is giving the voters the opportunity to mandate that the Mayor, the
Administration, and this Council set funding aside to address the backlog of roads,
funding that would come from the existing real property tax and the existing
Transient Accommodations Tax (TAT). The amounts that we used at one
percent (1%) and six percent (6%) were to generate revenues of approximately one
million dollars ($1,000,000) from each. I think when we went with the estimates last
time from the Director of Finance, Ken Shimonishi, we had one million
dollars ($1,000,000) for real property tax at one percent (1%) because his estimation
was point five percent (0.5%) is five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000). Then the
six percent (6%) of TAT was eight hundred ninety-four thousand dollars ($894,000).
It is well short of the money that we need to fully address the backlog, but it is
something to get us moving further in the right direction on top of whatever moneys
that would already be budgeted each year. The thought is that the voters would get
to vote on this, in essence, to say “County, Administration and Council, we want you
to figure this out with the existing budget. We do not want you to come to us with
new taxes such as the General Excise Tax or by increasing existing taxes.” 1
understand this means that this would force us to tighten our budget to the tune of
two million dollars ($2,000,000) in a year. I believe it can be done because we have
an unfunded balance each year of the well over ten million dollars ($10,000,000). I
believe we have shown that for several years. But I also think that this gives the
voters a chance to force us to do what we have not done for a few years now. I am
just asking for support to give the voters a chance to vote on that and to show that
we are doing something towards the backlog of repairs.

Council Chair Rapozo: Thank you. Is there any other discussion
before we open it up? With that, I will suspend the rules if there is no objection. Did
you want to come up, Department of Finance?

There being no objections, the rules were suspended.

SALLY A. MOTTA, Deputy Director of Finance: Good morning. I
am Sally Motta. I am the Deputy Director of Finance for the County of Kaua‘. I am
here to give testimony on the Resolution that we are discussing. The Administration



COUNCIL MEETING 35 JULY 20, 2016

opposes Resolution 2016-48, Draft 1. This Resolution proposes to amend the County
Charter through the adoption of each fiscal year budget and capital program to
appropriate, at minimum, one percent (1%) of the annual certified real property tax
revenues and a minimum of six percent (6%) of annual Transient Accommodations
Tax revenues to a fund known as the County Road Resurfacing / Reconstruction
Backlog Fund. Based on the most recent fiscal year budget of 2017, which the
Councilmember has said, we agree that there would be approximately two million
one hundred thousand dollars ($2,100,000) that would be necessary to be added in.
Our concerns are many, and the ones that we would like to address that we do not
feel are addressed is number one, given this Resolution if in effect for Fiscal
Year 2017 and the two million one hundred thousand dollar ($2,100,000) deficit was
created, where 1s the shortfall going to come from? So that is a major concern.

Number two, while Councilmembers’ comments have echoed “allow the voters
to decide,” there has been no disclosure of potential consequences to such action.
One (1) such consequence could be to raise real property tax rates to make up
“revenues that are diverted,” as the TAT revenues have been capped by legislature.
So we do not really i1s any control over that. The other consequence would be
budgetary cuts to programs and services. There are limits to what we can do.

Number three, the question needs to be asked, is it the Council’s policy that
road resurfacing/reconstruction should now be paid through real property taxes?

Number four, the long-term financial plan team is currently working with
GFOA, which is the Government Finance Officers Association, on the County’s
reserve policy and the establishment, maintenance, and prioritization of a healthy
“reserve fund.” Without knowing the results of this work, this Resolution would
appear to be premature.

Number five, unlike an ordinance, which can be revived by Council vote, a
charter amendment would require adherence without regard to consideration of
actual financial realities on-hand. For example, in the unfortunate event of a natural
disaster or economic downturn, the County would be forced to fund road
resurfacing/reconstruction which may not necessarily be the most pressing priority
at that given time.

Number six, the State financial condition presentation July 14th by State
Budget & Finance provided a draft update about the Employees’ Retirement
System (ERS) indicate the need to revise the longevity assumptions for retirees,
which will result in increases for ERS and Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB)
contributions. ERS anticipated to go from seventeen percent (17%) to nineteen
percent (19%) for general employees and twenty-five percent (25%) to thirty-five
percent (35%) for Police and Fire. Applied to the Fiscal Year 2017 budgets, this
equates to a four million two hundred thousand dollar ($4,200,000) increase in ERS
contributions alone.

Number seven, informal discussions with bond underwriters indicate
unfavorable views should the County continue with voter-initiated budgetary
constraints. Similar documentation is provided to bond agency rating criteria that
includes literature from the rating agencies on the subject. Fitch ratings, “the
outcome of voter initiatives and court decisions can constrain spending flexibility. In
addition, inflexible statutory or constitutional operations limitations are potential
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credit risk as they constrain user’s ability to react to negative development.” Moody’s,
“financial flexibility is a key area of analysis as it provides insight into a local
government’s ability to maintain or augment its financial position going forward,
ensuring a sufficient buffer to address any unexpected contingencies.” Standards &
Poor’s, “for some states, the voter initiative referendum process is very active and its
effects are important from a credit standpoint. Where decisions about specific
tax/revenue levels and spending allocations are place in the hands of the electorate,
states have reduced flexibility to respond to changing economic or financial
situations.” All three (3) of them agree on that.

We have a couple of recommendations that we thought you might be interested
in. Number one, allow the Administration and Council to first establish the County’s
reserve policy, and we anticipate it to be proposed in a couple of months. We are
looking by October. Number two, allow for us to complete the Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report (CAFR) and certify the fund balance in early 2017 before approving
additional funding for roads and bridges. We are also hoping to have that earlier.
Number three, recommend not approving this measure and allow this and future
Councils the budgetary flexibility that may be needed for unanticipated revenue and
expenditure fluctuations that may be beyond our control, such as natural disasters
or economic downturns.

Council Chair Rapozo: Thank you. Ijust want to ask one (1) question
first, because of the last point that you made. Is the Administration considering this
as a voter initiated process, because I think the three (3) rating agencies are talking
about initiatives and referendums where the public goes out, gets signatures, and
requires the Counties to put it on the ballot? That is not legal here. It is against the
Charter. That is prohibited. I am just curious as to your response to number seven?
This is not a voter initiated budgetary constraint. This is a Council initiated process.
I guess what I am saying is the three (3) agencies were referring to states that have
the public have the ability to initiate change as far as budgetary concerns. They
cannot do that here on Kaua‘i.

WALLACE G. REZENTES, JR., Managing Director: Wallace Rezentes,
Managing Director. Basically when we explained these items to our bond
underwriters, we talked to two (2) of them who have worked with us the last ten (10)
or twelve (12) years. It is looked upon under the same vein with respect to the rating
agencies. I have been through three (3) rating agencies’ presentations and that
question is always asked. The bottom line is the concern that the rating agencies
have usually surrounds itself around financial or fiscal flexibility. By havmg a
charter amendment that requires funding outside of the budgetary process is what
their concern is. I know that we have had it at the point five percent (0.5%) or one
percent (1%) for the Public Access, Open Space and Natural Resources Preservation
Fund. That was an issue that came up that we explained in the last rating agency’s
presentation in San Francisco with Fitch, Moody, and Standard & Poor’s. Again, it
1s one in of the same, as I understand it, in the minds of the rating agencies.

Council Chair Rapozo: I think this is your first appearance as the
Managing Director.

Mr. Rezentes: Yes.
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Council Chair Rapozo: Please introduce yourself. I know you did, but
I just want to make sure that the public knows.

Mr. Rezentes: I am Wally Rezentes, Jr. I was the Director
of Finance for about thirteen (13) years in my past life. I am coming back to life as a
Manager Director.

Council Chair Rapozo: Welcome back.

Mr. Rezentes: Thank you.

Council Chair Rapozo: Councilmember Kagawa.

Councilmember Kagawa: Congratulations, Wally. I think the Mayor
did a good choice. That is my personal opinion. Thank you.

Mr. Rezentes: Thank you.

Councilmember Kagawa: Your last statement was going to be my

question about the Public Access, Open Space and Natural Resources Preservation
Fund. We have the point five percent (0.5%) that goes into it. Is that basically
frowned upon by the three (3) agencies that the County of Kaua‘ did that?

Mr. Rezentes: Any time you do such a thing like that and
again, it is order of magnitude, right? The more you pile on, like in California, they
mentioned that a lot of municipalities have done that and really hand-tied the
flexibility of County governments there in times of an economic downturn or other
cause of a downturn. It is an issue every time you try to sell bonds, which again, we
are soon to be going into that market. We are hoping in the next few months to
present a package to Council for long-term financing. With that, we will be likely
making presentations on the mainland to the rating agencies. These type of things
will come up, yes. Do not get us wrong. We know. We acknowledge that we need to
provide additional funding for roads and bridges. I think where we differ is the
method in which to get the moneys. Again, as Sally mentioned, we want to first
establish the long-term plan in part through the reserve policy. Once we get that
established and we set aside the adequate reserves that again, these rating agencies
like to see when we establish these type of conservative financial policies, the excess
is something that we love to have that conversation with you on how we prioritize the
excess that is outside of the reserve policy. I think we can both agree that roads, if
not the highest-level, is right up there with the highest priority. But again, we just
hope we can have that discussion and review once we establish our long-term
financial plan and reserve policy.

Councilmember Kagawa: The point five percent (0.5%) for the Public
Access, Open Space and Natural Resources Preservation Fund is about six hundred
thousand dollars ($600,000)? How much 1is it per year?

Mr. Rezentes: I am sorry, I do not know offhand. I do not
have that in front of me.

Council Chair Rapozo: Five hundred ninety-five thousand
dollars ($595,000).
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Mr. Rezentes: It was higher prior.

Councilmember Kagawa: I do not know what year we passed it, but did
we see any results of the bond ratings going down because of that, or was that six
hundred thousand dollars ($600,000) so small that it did not really affect the bond
rating?

Mr. Rezentes: I am not sure when we changed it last. Put it
this way, I know it was brought up. It was brought up during the presentations by
the rating agencies. When you add on, I think we lowered it as you said, but we have
that and now we are potentially layering another initiative like this. So combined,
we would have less financial flexibility. For us, compounded with what we know is
happening today, what will likely happen based on our budget and finance initial
discussion with ERS, we are not yet sure about the health fund. The reason why
Mr. Shimonishi, who is sorry he could not be here. He is out sick with a blown out
back. He attended a Budget & Finance meeting in the last week or two (2).

Ms. Motta: July 14th,

Mr. Rezentes: July 14th, and the head of the Budget &
Finance made a presentation. The reason for the presentation was a start-up before
all the rounds of collective bargaining. They wanted the State and County agencies
and administrations there to get that preview of what is happening in the future. We
know now that we are going to have that four million some odd dollar potential bogie
out there. We know that we will have potential for spiking. If you combine the four
million two hundred thousand dollars ($4,200,000), the two million one hundred
thousand dollars ($2,100,000), and the five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000),
those are things that we all need to be cognizant of before we go and commit this
Council, future Councils, and future Administrations for such a thing. I would love
to have that conversation. Again, I am new. I have not really had the time to sit
down with you folks and really study how we can prudently find the right mechanism
to support higher levels of funding to our roads and bridges. But I believe there is a
way to work on it together. Again, I am just concerned with the method in which this
Resolution intends to do that.

Councilmember Kagawa: My last question and I will make it direct. We
have a six hundred thousand dollar ($600,000) current for the Public Access, Open
Space and Natural Resources Preservation Fund that is like a voter initiative, if the
two million one hundred thousand dollars ($2,100,000) passes, do you feel like it will
affect our bond rating in a negative way?

Mr. Rezentes: Personally, I believe it would. What we are
trying to do is establish a reserve policy with a range. Ideally on the Administration
side, we hope to get to that middle point in the range, and around the same time, we
would be going through our rounds with the credit rating agencies. So timing is
somewhat important right now on what is happening and when things get passed. I
am hoping before we can go to the rating agencies, and I mentioned it to Ken
Shimonishi, I am hoping we can solidify the reserve policy because that in and of
itself is very helpful when we go up there to present the County’s fiscal status.

Councilmember Kagawa: I will follow-up to that. Does a high reserve
hurt us when Union groups like State of Hawail Organization of Police
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Officers (SHOPO) and the Hawai‘l Fire Fighters Association (HFFA) point to the
reserve, and that is how they get these generous twenty-four percent (24%) pay raises
over four (4) years?

Mr. Rezentes: Well when we established the reserve, if it is
established appropriately, those funds would not be available for those types of
expenditures unless we change the policy. If we establish, for example, the reserve
as an ordinance specifying a pre-described range that is “a best practice in our
business.” If we decide to depart from that fiscal policy, we would need to first amend
the reserve policy ordinance before we would reprioritization that money for collective
bargaining. I understand there are different needs and different wants in
government, but I am hoping that everybody; the public, the Unions, the
Administration, and the Council can be supportive of a reasonable reserve policy that
1s understood to be a good thing, a prudent thing, and a best practice thing to have.

Councilmember Kagawa: Thank you. Thank you, Council Chair
Rapozo.
Council Chair Rapozo: Councilmember Hooser and then

Councilmember Kuali‘i.
(Councilmember Chock was noted as not present.)

Councilmember Hooser: Yes. Thank you and welcome to County
government again.

Mr. Rezentes: Thank you.

Councilmember Hooser: I agree with much of what you both said in
terms of establishing reserves, good fiscal planning, not piling on voter initiatives,
and losing control of the our own budget. What I want to ask you is the discussions
about road resurfacing and bridges, when I am out in the community, nobody is
asking me about bridges. They are asking me about congestion. They are saying
“when you are you going to do something about the traffic” over and over again. I
would like to see included in your plan, something dealing with traffic. I understand
the State, to a large extent, is responsible for that. But on the eastside, there is a
plan that has components in it that the County is responsible for or could be
responsible for. In terms of budgeting, if you could include a component that deals
with the eastside traffic specifically and some of those improvements that have
already been vetted. They have been vetted and talked about for years, and some are
minor, some are major. This is above and beyond widening the State highway.

Mr. Rezentes: I know. Councilmember Hooser, as you know,
a lot of those discussions maybe should be had in tandem with the relevant State
agencies, but we understand that issue. I live it. I live on the eastside, so I know
what you are talking about.

Councilmember Hooser: If T could just follow-up briefly? When I am
talking to people community, I kind of tell them that. But they are very clear to me
that it is my responsibility and it is the County’s responsibility to take the leadership
role working with the State to make this thing happen. I think at a later date, I am
going to ask yourself and the Roads Division to come forward and talk about what
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they are doing working with the State to help get some of this. This is just way over
the top, but I want to make sure that is on the table in addition to the repaving and
bridges in terms of budgeting because there are things that we can do outside of the
State’s purview on the eastside there in the interior that could improve conditions for
drivers. Thank you.

Council Chair Rapozo: Councilmember Kuali‘.

Councilmember Kuali‘i: Aloha, Wally and welcome, too.

Mr. Rezentes: Aloha.

Councilmember Kuali‘: When you were answering Vice Chair

Kagawa’s questions about the Public Access, Open Space and Natural Resources
Preservation Fund, are you basically saying that the Public Access, Open Space and
Natural Resources Preservation Fund, the mandated annual expenditure of that
point five percent (0.5%) did not bring our rating down? There were other things that
happened that probably brought our rating down.

(Councilmember Chock was noted as present.)

Mr. Rezentes: That is a component of the rating. I think
they look at it holistically. They do not look at it as a one-off, one-item rating. We
would not be able to say “if it was not there, our rating instead of A- to A or AA+.”
We are not able to pinpoint how one (1) item affected the rating.

(Councilmember Kagawa was noted as not present.)

Mr. Rezentes: To that point though, in all honesty, at the
five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000) level, based on our operating budget, I do
not think it is a significant item anymore. I may be wrong, but I think when I was
Director of Finance on our last issue, I think the amount was greater at that time. It
did receive, again, some discussion and questions. I think based on the County’s
overall financial picture at the time, it was not a major factor. What is it? Five
hundred thousand dollars ($500,000), six hundred thousand dollars ($600,000), or it
might have been one million dollars ($1,000,000) at the time. Now we are talking
about a potential two million one hundred thousand dollars ($2,100,000) with this
Initiative combined.

Councilmember Kuali‘i: That 1s the basic same answer about the
second part about whether you believe that this, going forward, would affect the
rating, and you said personally you believe it would.

Mr. Rezentes: Personally, I believe it would have some
negative effect. Any time you have initiatives that decrease the budgetary flexibility
of a County, and we can speak generally, it has a negative impact from the rating
agencies’ perspective because they want us to have all of the flexibility we need in
times when economically our revenues are down and we have more opportunities to
make the appropriate adjustments.

Councilmember Kuali‘i: Our CAFR from 2015 shows total government
expenses of one hundred ninety-three million seven hundred thousand
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dollars ($193,700,000). When you said that the five hundred thousand
dollars ($500,000) is not significant, it 1s in comparison to the total expenditures of
County government. So five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000) versus one
hundred ninety-three million seven hundred thousand dollars ($193,700,000) and
two million one hundred thousand dollars ($2,100,000) plus five hundred thousand
dollars ($500,000) would then be two million six hundred thousand
dollars ($2,600,000). Would two million six hundred thousand dollars ($2,600,000)
compared to one hundred ninety-three million seven hundred thousand
dollars ($193,700,000) still be insignificant being that it is a percentage of one
percent (1%)?

Mr. Rezentes: Let me answer it this way and please do not
take it the wrong way. I do not think the Administration or the Council at this last
budget cycle was able to 1identify two million one hundred thousand
dollars ($2,100,000) in expenditure reductions. When I was out on the outside looking
in, I believe that the Administration did propose a measure. I know it did not get
passed to facilitate roads maintenance. I do not know what else to say.

Councilmember Kuali: Your point is absolutely right and that is the
reason I put this forward, because we were not able to do it when it was optional, but
when voters say you must do it, we will figure it out.

Mr. Rezentes: Yes. Well again, our concern, Councilmember
Kualif, is there are going to be fiscal ramifications with that decision. I personally
do not think you will be able to find two million one hundred thousand
dollars ($2,100,000) in cost reductions. I think if you look at the County budget
globally with just the couple of items that I mentioned today, we have collective
bargaining and we have increases in Employees’ Retirement System. I am not sure
yet. I am not in the throes yet to understand where health fund may go, but I do not
think it is going down. If anything it is going up. Beyond the two million one hundred
thousand dollars ($2,100,000) that this initiative proposes to generate, we have other
items that we just need to be mindful and cognizant of going into this next budget
year.

Councilmember Kualii: If not two million one hundred thousand
dollars ($2,100,000), is there any amount, a lower amount, say five hundred thousand
dollars ($500,000) or six hundred thousand dollars ($600,000) like what we have in
the Public Access, Open Space and Natural Resources Preservation Fund? Is there
any amount that the Administration could support, which would be the floor and then
the Council each year based on our position, could make higher assuming the voters
pass it?

Mr. Rezentes: To answering your question, lowering the
amount would be better for us because we have the ability to be more flexible. But I
think the better route, what we are proposing is a different route that finding a
recurring source of revenue or finding expenditures that we can cut and sustain that
cut long-term to offset the increase in this expenditure? I think that is the route to
go, or a revenue source that does not mandate us to fund without flexibility.

Councilmember Kuali‘i: The fact that it only impacts less than one
percent (1%), you think that alone is a major...you talk about flexibility and that it is
hindering us from having flexibility.
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Mr. Rezentes: Well again, I am sorry. I go back to the
normal budgetary process. I think this body and even the Administration would be
hard-pressed to find two million one hundred thousand dollars ($2,100,000) annually
from our existing revenue sources and expenditure basis. I think we would have a
hard time finding a reduction in expenses.

(Councilmember Kagawa was noted as present.)

Mr. Rezentes: I think we would have a hard time
reallocating basically revenues that go to someplace else at this point. Two million
one hundred thousand dollars ($2,100,000) as comparison to the budget, might not be
a high percentage, but two million one hundred thousand dollars ($2,100,000) is two
million one hundred thousand dollars ($2,100,000).

Councilmember Kuali‘i: In 2015, our Unassigned Fund Balance was
twenty-seven million nine hundred thousand dollars ($27,900,000). Having two
million one hundred thousand dollars ($2,100,000) off of that amount would impact
our credit rating? Would it put us in a terrible position?

Mr. Rezentes: Again, I think we should have the
conversation on the establishing the reserve policy. I think establishing the reserve
policy will likely take a good majority of the funds that we have “unassigned” at this
time. If we compound that with known expenditure increases, we are going to be
hard-pressed to make a reasonable stab at establishing a worthwhile reserve policy.
Again, within a couple of months or so, we are soon to be in front of this body
requesting consideration of adopting a reserve policy that again, I think Sally
mentioned. We are working with GFOA and they have the luxury of understanding
nationally where municipalities are and they work with County governments like
ours in a consulting basis to establish what industry best practices are and what is
acceptable by the respective credit rating agencies.

Council Chair Rapozo: Wally, I have a couple of the questions. We
have been discussing reserve policy now for probably over ten (10) years. When you
talked about the Public Access, Open Space and Natural Resources Preservation
Fund, at the time when you were there, it was one point five percent (1.5%). I think
it was over one million dollars ($1,000,000). That is why you remember it being higher
because the percentage was higher.

Mr. Rezentes: Yes.

Council Chair Rapozo: Did the Administration testify or oppose that
measure because of the concerns of the credit rating or bond rating? They did not
they did not.

Mr. Rezentes: I cannot recall.

Council Chair Rapozo: They did not. That is why I am like “oh, okay.”
So Public Access, Open Space and Natural Resources Preservation Fund because it
was a novel item and you were going to buy up all of these parks, which we have not
really spent much of it, but we can get behind that. But this is something, which
everyone on this table and across the street has said is a priority, roads. I guessIam
surprised that the Administration is opposing it because I think Councilmember
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Kualil touched on the numbers, twenty-seven million nine hundred thousand
dollars ($27,900,000) that lapsed. Do we have any idea what the lapse will be next
year?

Mr. Rezentes: We are working on that.

Council Chair Rapozo: Maybe that is better for the Department of
Finance. You folks have the books, but is that something that you keep of track of
monthly actuals?

Ms. Motta: We are waiting for those figures to be coming
in from our different departments.

Council Chair Rapozo: But I mean, we should have an idea based on
the actuals versus budgeted. Do we have an idea what that might be?

Mr. Rezentes: I am sorry. I do not have that information. I
know it is going to be positive. I am not sure to what extent, but I know when you
take the number globally with what we have now, what we will likely have, and then
you consider what a reserve amount should be even with that additional lapse, we
are not going to have a large amount, if any, outside of the reserve range.

Council Chair Rapozo: What is GFOA’s recommendation? Was it
eighteen percent (18%) or twenty percent (20%) of your operating budget as a reserve?
Is that what is there standard? I cannot remember.

Mr. Rezentes: It all depends. It is not just a number. They
look at how risky, sorry for lack of a better word, how risky our source of revenues
are. Is it pretty much one-dimensional? Do we have multiple solid, recurring
sources? Is some of your moneys capped? That has come up as well with respect to
TAT because at one time, it was growing consistently. I think some of you were here
and can remember that. Now that is capped, and from the County’s perspective, that
1s a concern because they know that is not within “County government control.” It
all rolls back to pretty much real property taxes as our solid, singular source that you
seven (7) Members ultimately control. We do not have as diversified an economy as
say Honolulu, and because of that, our ratings are usually not as strong. We are
considered more rural. I was here when we were reeling in the aftermath of
Hurricane ‘Iniki when our real property taxes went down significantly and we had to
work for years to build it back up. I remember going through the collective bargaining
process after that and basically having the arbitrator tell us “Hey Kaua‘l County, we
know that out of everybody basically you justified your rationale on why you ‘cannot
afford to pay any more moneys,” but do you know what? The rest of the Counties can.
So you folks have to figure out a way. It is a statewide collective bargaining.” So that
was a tough call when we did not have control over the hurricane. We did not have
the ability to move on a dime by increasing revenue, and that speaks to what we are
trying to do with respect to the reserve.

Council Chair Rapozo: Got 1t. Councilmember Hooser and then
Councilmember Chock.

Councilmember Hooser: Good discussion. I actually was on the
Council when the Public Access, Open Space and Natural Resources Preservation
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Fund was created. I was a sponsor of the Resolution that put that on the ballot,
myself and now Senate President, Kouchi co-sponsored it. At that time, we had
similar discussions in terms of impact on the budget. I think the element that makes
1t different and I would like your opinion on it, is that the Open Space plan is for asset
acquisition, capital assets. We are buying land rather than paving roads, which in
ten (10) years 1s going to be need to be repaved, operating versus capital. Is our asset
acquisition is that part of our strength that the bond people would be looking at, or
would that make a difference?

Mr. Rezentes: Our asset allocation?

Councilmember Hooser: We are basically buying land with the Public
Access, Open Space and Natural Resources Preservation Fund as opposed to
operating costs for the Highway Fund.

Mr. Rezentes: I cannot recall that ever being a topic of
discussion during those rating agencies’ presentations.

Councilmember Hooser: Okay. Is the land that we own part of our
reserve, if you would, or is it part of our strength of our finances?

Mr. Rezentes: It is an asset that we have that if we, I guess,
sell, we can convert it to cash. It would not be recurring, which is the best source of
revenue. I think other counties and states have done sale of real estate assets as a
stop-gap measure, but I do not think that is something that you want to go to. It is
not the well you want to go to very often. I think it goes against the intent of open
space.

Councilmember Hooser: Thank you.

Council Chair Rapozo: Councilmember  Chock, Councilmember
Kuali‘l, and then Councilmember Yukimura.

Councilmember Chock: Thank you. If the Government Finance
Officers Association were to come back and we have a figure that we want to attain
and do attain it, would the Administration be more open to this option that
Councilmember Kuali’s amendment is moving towards? If not, GET has passed
already, so what direction would the Administration want to collaboratively look
towards in trying to answer the need that we are discussing today?

Mr. Rezentes: I think we would be definitely open to looking
at a recurring source of revenue outside of a Charter-driven initiative like this for
purposes that we are being presented with today.

Councilmember Chock: Property tax-driven?

Mr. Rezentes: Any other source.

Councilmember Chock: Okay.

Mr. Rezentes: I think that is something that we need to

prioritize. I know it is not easy to sell any increase in taxes or establishing a new
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source of recurring funds. It is not easy. I really get that. I used to be a banker and
I know for clients that we have, any time there is that kinds of issue, because they
knew I had the old County hat on, they would come and see me. I know it is a
challenge for a lot of folks.

Councilmember Chock: Okay.
Council Chair Rapozo: Councilmember Kuali‘i.
Councilmember Kuali‘i: One (1) of your statements talks about how

will the shortfall be made up. The whole use of the word “shortfall” when you are
talking about a budget, it is because you budget for what you are expending and what
your revenue and expenses are. I believe in our last fiscal year, we forecasted our
real property tax revenue at one level and it came in much higher. It was three
million dollars ($3,000,000) higher or six million dollars ($6,000,000) higher. It was
some significant amount higher. Are we forecasting our real property tax revenue for
next year at the more realistic higher level? I mean, if we as a County operate real
conservatively and forecast our revenues low and budget our expenditures high, that
1s where we have this big gap in between, and that is not tight budgeting. That is not
the most efficient use of the citizens’ hard-earned tax dollars. To start using words
like “shortfall,” “revenues being diverted,” and “premature,” it is all relative in how
you plan for the budget and how accurately we forecast revenues. I accept the fact,
too, that if two million dollars ($2,000,000) is diverted towards road maintenance and
we are not able to come up with this cost-savings, then we are going to have to look
at the tax side of the equation.

Council Chair Rapozo, the presiding officer, relinquished Chairmanship to
Councilmember Kagawa.

(Council Chair Rapozo was noted as not present.)

Councilmember Kuali: That is this body’s responsibility. That is the
Administration’s responsibility. But remember, what was done was a new
regressive...well, was trying to attempt a new regressive General Excise Tax. So to
a certain degree, this Council has not been put in that position. We have not been
budgeting tight enough that we had to raise taxes. If we have to in the future, that
1s our responsibility.

Mr. Rezentes: With respect to your question, I think your
first question was budgeting real property taxes. We are mandated by law how we
can budget real property taxes. It is relatively conservative and for good reason, it is
a tax levy that has not been collected. If everything works out right and we collect
the lion’s share, ninety-nine percent (99%) mnety eight percent (98%), or whatever
of what we budget, we are probably going to be in a good position because of the means
in which we only can base our real property tax revenue on the certified tax roll.
Sometimes we are going to be better off than others. It all ultimately depends on how
much we collect and sometimes how much we collect in back taxes. Sometimes we
might get, say for example, tax appeals that come out in our favor. We might get a
windfall in the ensuing fiscal year. It could be vice versa, we lose huge appeals. If
three (3), or four (4), or five (5) of the largest hotels jointly decide they want to appeal,
then it will be a real nail-biter for us on how we budget and how we fare in the
outcome of deciding whether or not they win or lose the appeal. I hear what you are
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saying. If everything goes right, we usually end up the year with a little bit more in
real property taxes revenues, but that is by design.

(Council Chair Rapozo was noted as present.)
Councilmember Kagawa returned Chairmanship to Council Chair Rapozo.

Councilmember Kuali‘: It i1s not only the collectability side of it,
whether you collect ninety-nine percent (99%) of what you are forecasting?

(Councilmember Kagawa was noted as not present.)

Councilmember Kualii: But 1s it not also the property value side of it?
For example, if values actually come in higher, then we collect more. I wish I had the
numbers in front of me, but we forecast a certain amount of real property tax revenue
and we put that in the budget, and then when we actually collect it, it has been
significantly higher. I believe millions higher.

Mr. Rezentes: I think most economic experts will tell you
that we are on the far end of a good economic cycle, and it i1s cyclical. Usually over
time, over decades, over multiple decades, you kind of have an idea how long a good
sustained economic upturn lasts. This cycle has been going on for quite some time. I
would agree with the economists today, that we are on the mature side of the
economic cycle.

Councilmember Kuali: Thank you.

Councilmember Yukimura: Would you say that we really need a recurring
source of income in order to address road repair?

Mr. Rezentes: I think that is better way. If we are talking a
substantive increase, and I am not saying that is not right. I think it is probably
more right than wrong as far as the amounts that we are looking at here. But instead
of having a one-off, say you wanted a one-time to tap the reserves for two million
dollars ($2,000,000), three million dollars ($3,000,000), or four million
dollars ($4,000,000), it might work as a stopgap measure, but it is not something that
is where you would want to go sustainably over time.

Councilmember Yukimura: Okay. If you want a one-time stopgap, you
need maybe fifty million dollars ($50,000,000) to address one hundred million
dollars ($100,000,000) because it keeps deteriorating. I am not even sure whether
the two million dollars ($2,000,000) will get us anywhere if the roads are deteriorating
faster than we have to fix the roads with two million dollars ($2,000,000), right?

Mr. Rezentes: That is the same reason why I do not think
you have any problem getting the voters to say “Yes, we need better roads. We need
more improved roads.” But when you bring in the other side of the equation, what is
the willingness to pay for those improvements? Then you start talking. It is not an
easier sell.
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Councilmember Yukimura: Okay. If the Administration does not think
this 1s the best solution, and you said the Administration is for any other recurring
source of income, what are the sources that we have?

(Councilmember Kagawa was noted as present.)

Councilmember Yukimura: The only things that we have are the vehicle
weight tax and fuel tax. Are there any other recurring sources?

Mr. Rezentes: Those are the two (2) major ones as well as
real property.

Councilmember Yukimura: Real property?

Mr. Rezentes: Yes, unless we create another source that we
have not utilized in the past.

Councilmember Yukimura: Okay, so it is fuel tax, vehicle weight tax, or
real property tax?

Mr. Rezentes: Those are the three (3) major ones.

Councilmember Yukimura: Increase, not just taking from the existing pot,
but increasing. So those are...

Mr. Rezentes: Options.
Councilmember Yukimura: The options.
. Mr. Rezentes: I would say those are the three (3) major
options.
Councilmember Yukimura: Is the Administration going to be proposing

any of those?

Mr. Rezentes: I think we need to have that discussion and I
think we want to have it, but we want to have it after we establish a reasonable
reserve policy. The excess amounts that are outside that we are not setting aside in
the reserve, let us prioritize that and figure out the best means of finding a revenue
source that we can keep in the future.

Councilmember Yukimura: What are you referring to as “amounts outside
of the reserve?”

Mr. Rezentes: I am sorry. Maybe I got on a different subject.
If we establish a reserve policy, say we set aside twenty-five million
dollars ($25,000,000) or twenty million dollars ($20,000,000) in reserves in a reserve
bank. Those moneys are going to be set aside for the purposes of the reserve policy
set.

Councilmember Yukimura: Correct.
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Mr. Rezentes: Outside of that money, say we have an
Unassigned Fund Balance beyond that twenty million dollars ($20,000,000) of
whatever million, those moneys would be available for appropriation. Again, we are
not speaking to additional sources of revenue. I am just saying this is a pot of
revenues that can be utilized for a purpose that the Council decides.

Councilmember Yukimura: That is what we look at every year in our
budgeting process.

Mr. Rezentes: True.

Councilmember Yukimura: Are you saying rather than do it by a charter
amendment, which gives you no flexibility as to how the moneys should be used, you
do it during the budget process and you determine year by year what the emergencies
are like this upcoming ERS increases?

Mr. Rezentes: Collective bargaining.

Councilmember Yukimura: There is Adolescent Drug Treatment Center
operating moneys of about eight hundred thousand dollars ($800,000), right, when it
finally starts to get funded? I have heard any other source and we have done a
Resolution saying that we will find the funds. I do not know. There will be some
other things. Otherwise, we have to have severe cuts into existing budgets of our
departments. We tried that this year during budget and came up with three hundred
fifty-five thousand dollars ($355,000). What is the range of the Unassigned Fund
Balance usually?

Mr. Rezentes: An Unassigned Fund Balance can vary all
over the place. It could vary significantly.

Councilmember Yukimura: The only other one is an increase in the TAT,
and that is something I presume the Administration is going to be requesting of the
legislature.

Mr. Rezentes: The Administration has consistently done
that even when I was not around.

Councilmember Yukimura: Okay. The choice before us today is whether
to earmark something in terms of the real property taxes and basically say that is the
most important thing because we are we are earmarking it for road repair. It is going
to be...

Council Chair Rapozo: Is there a question for Wally?
Councilmember Yukimura: Yes.
Council Chair Rapozo: Okay. Please try to get to that because you

are having your discussion. Please ask the question.
Councilmember Yukimura: I am asking...

Council Chair Rapozo: Others want to ask questions too.
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Councilmember Yukimura: I am asking.

Council Chair Rapozo: You are not asking. Ask the question if you
have one.

Councilmember Yukimura: I am laying out a situation and asking for his

comments on it in terms of a scenario. It is saying if you earmark a certain amount
that means it has higher priority than anything else and you cannot change it either,
except by going back to the ballot again and expecting the public to understand all of
the intricacies of the budgeting?

Mr. Rezentes: Yes.

Councilmember Yukimura: Okay.

Council Chair Rapozo: Councilmember Kagawa.

Councilmember Kagawa: I recall Councilmember Kualii doing a great

job of showing a scenario of the County budget for the past twelve (12) years. It
showed that it doubled. Is that accurate?

Mr. Rezentes: I would say that is pretty accurate without
looking at it, yes.

Councilmember Kagawa: The questions that Councilmember Yukimura
1s pointing out is almost like “oh, we need a new revenue source because we are not
generating enough revenue.” But it could be looked at as we have an expenditure
problem because the revenues have increased. How much have the County revenues
gone up over the ast year? Was it twelve million dollars ($12,000,000) or thirteen
million dollars ($13,000,000)?

Mr. Rezentes: Yes. At the same time, it is relative to cost
increases and inflationary costs.

Councilmember Kagawa: I understand.

Mr. Rezentes: I think the major driver in the County’s
budget, I think it was close to around the number of eighty percent (80%) is employee
related costs. So maybe it is upwards nowadays. I do not have the numbers in front
of me, but I know it is not too far away from being a pretty accurate number. If you
track the budget increases to everything that coincides with employee costs, I think
that graph will be pretty tightly aligned because the reality is we do not have that
much in budgetary flexibility when you exclude all of the employee related costs. You
do not have that much budget flexibility to begin with. I can speak to some of the
discussion earlier about making significant expenditure decreases. Years ago when
we have had discussions with the Chamber of Commerce, there was talk about how
can you make substantive changes and how the County government operates and
how we spend money. That was posed to me and others on the panel. My response
was what service, look at it larger, and go back to the clouds and look at how money
1s spent. What services do we provide the people of Kaua‘l that we cannot provide in
the future? What is it or is it more than one (1) item? What are those things that we
do, the services that we provide them that we can take away in whole because that is
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when you start talking millions? You take away a program or an agency, then you
are talking millions. Do we take away economic development and say “that is not
important. Let us let the private sector folks deal with that and promote it or other
nonprofits?” Then you are talking about millions. I am not sure. Somebody can look
at what the Office of Economic Development budget is. That is when you are making
significant changes in how we are structured. I have been in this game close to
fourteen (14) years, worked on budgets for close to fourteen (14) years, and that is a
harder conversation because, you folks know, you have all of these different special
interests and good special interests that demands you folks to fund. It is that hard
to take away a component of that budget or expenditure base because many people
need it, want it, and desire it

Councilmember Kagawa: Last year, I believe was in the neighborhood
of thirteen million dollars ($13,000,000) of generated more revenue, and then
unanticipated pay raises was about seven million dollars ($7,000,000). If we are
saying that the majority is because of employee costs, then where is the six million
dollars ($6,000,000)? Is it distributed among other things than payroll? If we are
saying that we cannot fund additional roads because we do not generate enough
revenue, then where 1s the extra six million dollars ($6,000,000)?

Mr. Rezentes: Well, we do not throw it away. It is in the
fund balance. If it is not appropriated and it is not expended, then it is still within
our coffers.

Councilmember Kagawa: But to paint the picture that Councilmember
Yukimura was trying to paint, we can only pave more roads if we raise the GET, if
we get more TAT, or if we increase the motor vehicle weight tax. Yes, okay that is an
option, but before we even go down that road, where is the six million
dollars ($6,000,000)? I do not know.

Mr. Rezentes: It is in our fund balance.

Councilmember Kagawa: It is somewhere in the budget?

Mr. Rezentes: It is in our fund balance.

Councilmember Kagawa: Okay. Thank you, Council Chair Rapozo.
Council Chair Rapozo: I can ask you to go look at the internal

transfer spreadsheet. You will see where a lot of the money is, a lot of expenditures
that are funds that are being used. It is what it is. The funds are there. It is just a
matter and you said it, it is not so much of a revenue issue, it is how we spend. Yes,
Mr. Rezentes is correct. If you cut the big departments, yes, you are going cut
millions, but I think we have to cut more of the smaller expenditures that are not
necessary. It is really a priority issue. If you think roads are a priority issue, then
that is where you put the money. Are there any other questions for the
Administration? If not, thank you very much.

Mr. Rezentes: Thank you.

Council Chair Rapozo: Is there any public testimony? Is there
anybody registered to speak?
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Ms. Fountain-Tanigawa: We have one (1) registered speaker. Matt
Bernabe.
Mr. Bernabe: Matt Bernabe, for the record. I am confused

because every time I listen to a business report, they say that Kaua‘i’s big problem is
infrastructure. If somebody looks at my house and my house’s roof has puka which
1s equivalent of the potholes, missing tiles, and whatever, they are gomg to give me a
lesser value for that house. As soon as I redo my roof, they are going to give me bigger
value. It is in our best interest for the bond, I believe, to have our infrastructure
better. As far as traffic goes, some of the reasons some of the areas slowdown is the
condition of the road. Right there by the seawall by Wailua, everybody slows down
to about fifteen miles per hour (15 MPH) because that road is damaged on the inside
lane. I think Council Chair Rapozo and Councilmember Kagawa hit it on the head,
it 1s a spending problem and it is not just appropriating without having Council
oversight. They are doing projects that do not matter to the majority. There are more
people that drive a car than ride a bike. More money is earned by the people who
drive cars than ride bikes. But yet, I would bet they have done more mileage of bike
lanes then they have done resurfacing in the last several years. I heard numbers of
only one point nine (1.9) miles of resurfacing. I am assuming there is more than one
point nine (1.9) miles of added bike lanes. If this is one of those priorities...they talk
about “oh, we will have to cut funding,” well, the roads are more important than many
of the things that they fund. I think they are not recognizing that the public looks at
five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000) pay raises as potential paved roads. I am
not going to beat this one up too much. I would like to say that on line four, Section D,
I believe, I do not have my phone up here. I really think they do not like the fact that
the Council should set the policy and they are going to have to follow them. That is
what I think this is. As far as employee spending, we do not have any job manifestos
from day one of new employees or in some cases, we have new facilities and give
existing employees the job, we do not guide them the correct way. That is inefficient.
I recently did a tree tunnel clean up with the County and No Ka Oi Landscape
Services. The County people did not have uniforms that matched. Some had County
shirts and some did not. The No Ka Oi Landscape Services workers had “No Ka O1”
all the way across the board. That is a policy issue and that is just a small one, but I
am sure if we looked at it, we could find ways to save money on the job site, which
would transfer up. Thank you.

Council Chair Rapozo: Thank you.

NORMA DOCTOR SPARKS:  Good morning. Norma Doctor Sparks. I have
concerns as we have been talking about the budget this morning because in terms of
reserve policy, et cetera, I think the budget requires more than just looking at the
reserve policy. Ijust want to share again that for the last twenty-five (25) years, the
least budget that I was responsible for two hundred thirty-six million
dollars ($236,000,000). The last budget I was personally responsible for was the Los
Angeles County Department of Public Social Services, which was a four billion
dollar ($4,000,000,000) budget. I am concerned that we do not really know where we
are spending our dollars. I think the other issue is how we spend the dollars. We
know that fixing roads should be a priority, but we have not even talked about how
many federal dollars we are pulling down for highway repairs. We have not talked
about other issues where in fact, you might be able to do such kinds of matching to
figure out how to pay for the services. I was very concerned a few weeks ago when
Council Chair Rapozo brought up the issue about the fine being paid to the
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department without it going through the channels including going through this
County Council to figure out where the one hundred forty-six thousand
dollars ($146,000) was actually coming from. I think that one of the things that
brought up for me was that how much and how many dollars were actually given to
departments and not really being spent? I know in March, for example, I looked at a
personnel vacancy report, and there were about one hundred seventeen (117)
positions that were not filled. As you know, personnel issues go on infinity and we
need to consider them without cutting them as long as they are in the budget as
personnel issues or positions. The question about how you can move some dollars
from the personnel budget to the operating budget is something that also needs to be
looked at. I am concerned about the operating budget. I am concerned that
departments are continuously giving the same amount of money that they had last
year and not really looking at what they actually spent the previous year, and what
their priorities are for this year. I have heard since the last six (6) months about the
dire straits of our County and how we do not have enough dollars, but I do think we
have the dollars. Again, it is a priority. I do have concerns that we do not know
where it 1s coming from and we do not know how it is going out. This Council needs
to get a better handle on that so that we really know when we say we are not spending
twelve million dollars ($12,000,000) or thirteen million dollars ($13,000,000) a year,
why not? Thank you.

Councilmember Yukimura: I have a question.
Council Chair Rapozo: Go ahead. Norma
Councilmember Yukimura: I just wanted to know, maybe you said it in

the beginning, but what is your position on this Resolution?

Ms. Sparks: I would support this Resolution. I do have
concerns about reducing our bond rating, but I do think that we need to look at the
gas taxes presently.

Council Chair Rapozo: Okay. Do you support the Resolution?

Ms. Sparks: I do support the Resolution.

Council Chair Rapozo: Thank you.

Mr. Bernabe: Matt Bernabe, for the record. I will use my

last three (3) minutes. I just wanted to read it. I like this part and I do support this.
“The Council shall by ordinance establish procedures for the Administration and
priorities for the expenditure of the money in this fund.” I think this line is key
because I think that is what they are fighting. I really believe that. I just want to
add another thing, they are adding inventory to real property. They have a project
in Hanama‘ulu and there is going to be more houses over the next twenty (20) years.
The revenue from real property tax will go up because they have more inventory. You
folks just busted them in the sense of saying, “hey, do not bring up affordable homes
if this is an inventory increase.” If it is an inventory increase, this is one of those
justifications right here. Instead of taxing you folks, we are going to increase
inventory so that we can keep your values down. Now the discussion on how we do
that is obviously not germane, but on this topic, nobody pointed out that we are
adding houses to the inventory. So that should cover two million dollars ($2,000,000).
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I do not see how it could not. If it cannot, then we really need to look at how we are
operating and spending our money. With that, I will let you folks figure this one out.

Council Chair Rapozo: Thank you. Anyone else wishing to testify? If
not, I will call the meeting back to order.

There being no further testimony, the meeting was called back to order, and
proceeded as follows:

Council Chair Rapozo: Is there any further discussion?
Councilmember Kaneshiro.

Councilmember Kaneshiro: I have my notes all over the place so bear with
me on this one. I understand the intent of it and I know roads are our hot topic and
main priority item, but I am not comfortable tying our hands with this type of the
legislation. I have been going to the meetings with the Administration as far as our
financial policies. I also look at it as how I run my own bank account. The reserve
policy is key. Do we have enough money to cover expenses in times of, say we get a
hurricane? We are not only going to have to pay for insurance and damages, but we
are also going to have decreased home values. When you take a hit like that, you
want to be sure that you have a reserve fund that is established and accounts for that
type of thing. I think every year we do lapse money. I know it is a budget
methodology. I am not opposed to lapsing money. This reserve policy comes in where
once we hit our reserve, once we say we have the comfortable amount of the money
1n our reserve, and we lapse another five million dollars ($5,000,000) or six million
dollars ($6,000,000), then we take that money and say, “what do we do with this
money? What are our priorities for this money?” That is the same way as I budget.
I need to pay for my expenses. Any lapses go into my savings. If my savings is
comfortable, then are there other things I want to spend out of my savings, not out of
my checking? On first reading, I said I was hesitant. I am open to the discussion,
but I am very much more comfortable allowing us the flexibility through the budget
process and work with the Administration. We have unanticipated costs that come
up all the time. I think every year we have collective bargaining increases. Every
year we hope that our real property taxes can cover all of these increases. In the end,
1t comes down to priorities. If we have money in the end, how do we prioritize and
how do we spend it? We definitely need to make sure that we have enough money in
our reserve fund to cover anything. Anything in addition to that, yes, we allocate it
to something, whatever priority it is. That is the way I want to budget.

At first reading, I gave three (3) options. Rather than putting money in a
reserve, we just say “any lapsed amount at the end of the year, we take a percentage
and put to roads.” The other option would be we establish our reserve, any extra in
the years coming, we prioritize that and putting it to something. The third one is
really getting the Administration to say, “We are going to make a commitment to
funding more roads.” We did an increase from zero dollars ($0) to one million two
hundred thousand dollars ($1,200,000). Maybe the Administration says, “This year
we are going try to bump that number to two million dollars ($2,000,000) or
something,” and then we will have an extra eight million dollars ($8,000,000) each
year. Then when we go out to bid every other year, we have an extra one million six
hundred thousand dollar ($1,600,000) to bid. I think that is where the flexibility
comes in. I just have a hard time getting our hands tied with voters voting on it and
we basically tie our hands, and then we do not have the flexibility to move around as
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we need to. I completely agree. We need to watch our spending. That is important,
and we also need to prioritize what we spend our money on. I think all of that comes
through the budget process. Again like I said, I have my notes from the last meeting.
If we were in the budget process that we just went through a few months ago, where
would this two million dollars ($2,000,000) come from and what would we do to fill
that gap? It is easy to say, “We are going put two million dollars ($2,000,000) here,”
but to look at our budget, we did a balanced budget, we had maybe three hundred
fifty thousand dollars ($350,000) in cuts, we did not two million dollars ($2,000,000)
this cuts, the budget was balanced, and if we take two million dollars ($2,000,000) to
roads, then where does that money come from and how do we fill in a gap? Like Wally
said, where are we taking it from? What programs are we taking it from? Are we
willing to live without it or how are we going to fund it? This ultimately comes down
to what I am comfortable with, and I think we should concentrate on our reserve fund
and allow us the flexibility to do what we need. That is just my personal opinion.

Council Chair Rapozo: Councilmember Kualii.

Councilmember Kuali: I just want to put out there procedurally that
I know it is hard to get to five (5) votes, but on the discussion with the Director of
Finance, I am willing to propose an amendment either to cut it in half (1) or even to
a quarter (1/4) just to establish this as a further budget tool that the voters could put
in our hands as a Council. I do not know. I want to hear if there is even any interest.
If we cannot get to five (5) votes with such an amendment, then I will not bother.

Council Chair Rapozo: Members? Nobody? Are you folks ready to
vote? I am trying to get them to answer, but they are not answering. We will just go
to the vote.

Councilmember Kuali‘i: Let me make my comments.
Council Chair Rapozo: Okay. Go ahead.
Councilmember Kuali‘i: Further on my comments, I just want to say

and I do not know if you remember in my budget message or closing remarks about
the budget, I did provide all of the spreadsheets with the actual numbers. I agree
and they said it better than I did as far as us having a spending problem. Part of that
spending problem is a growth in spending problem. If you look from just 2006 through
2015, a span of less than ten (10) years, nine (9) years, we went from total government
expenditures of one hundred twenty-seven million four hundred thousand
dollars ($127,400,000) to one hundred ninety-three million seven hundred thousand
dollars ($193,700,000). So that is a sixty-six million dollar ($66,000,000) increase or
a fifty percent (50%) increase in overall county spending in a nine (9) year period. At
that time, we went from in 2006, one thousand forty (1,040) full-time equivalent
employees to in 2015, one thousand two hundred ninety-two (1,292). So an increase
of two hundred fifty (250) full-time equivalent employees or twenty-five percent (25%)
increase. Now, I wonder if the voters would actually see, the constituents, would see
that we really increased our services to the community at that level. Now is the time.
I believe during the budget we got the sense that the Administration was catching on
to that we had a county spending problem and that they were trying to curb that just
to the point of stopping the bleeding. But now, we have to go further. The only way
we can go further is that we focus more on finding cost-savings and that the Vacancy
Review Committee keeps working on vacant positions and eliminating them where
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we can at an accelerated rate because this is blown out of the control. This one
hundred million dollar ($100,000,000) backlog is very real. We have to deal with it
and no one has come up with any other way. As far as the tying our hands and having
the flexibility, we are literally only talking about less than one percent (1%) of our
entire government expenditures, one hundred ninety-three million seven hundred
thousand dollars ($193,700,000) by CAFR in 2015. Two million dollars ($2,000,000)
out of one hundred ninety-three million seven hundred thousand
dollars ($193,700,000) is around one percent (1%). We need something. I think the
voters should have the choice. It takes five (5) votes to go to the voters. We could do
something ourselves with four (4) votes. If we can only get the four (4) votes, I will
come back with a bill. Council Vice Chair Kagawa talked about the reserve policy
and the talk about that for the last ten (10) years. Yes, that is fine. If it comes forward
in two (2) months, that is great. We can use all of the different tools and keep moving
in this direction. But I think it is only fair and right that we give the voters a chance
not to be put in the position again with something like a new General Excise Tax. I
have an amendment if anybody wants it for either half (%) the amount or
quarter (1/4) of the amount.

Council Chair Rapozo: Councilmember Yukimura.

Councilmember Yukimura: I will be voting against the Resolution. I
think our Budget & Finance Committee Chair made a good argument about this past
budget’s experience where we all tried to cut and only cut three hundred fifty-five
thousand dollars ($355,000). If we were to have to cut two million
dollars ($2,000,000), the hardship on County employees and departments would be
quite substantial. We already saw some of that when departments are told to be
under a certain level and they forego preventative maintenance or supplies thinking
“well, maybe next election, if it is better we will get it.” In the long run, often that
will cause more costs just like putting off repaving. Our roads will cause more costs
in the long-run. So earmarking two million dollars ($2,000,000) off the top for road
repair is not a good option because we have not really assessed the impacts on other
operations and other employees. If we were to earmark, I would prefer to do how
Maui County has and earmark it for affordable housing, which does not have user
fees that it could draw on. Same thing with open space. You do not have user fees
that you can draw on, whereas with repair of roads, you do have user fees to draw on.
In fact, why are we not saying users should pay for the cost roads that they are using?
Then on top of that, two million dollars ($2,000,000) does not stop the bleeding. I
mean, we need ten million dollars ($10,000,000) a year and my guess is we are going
to have more damage than two million dollars ($2,000,000) per year if we only spend
two million dollars ($2,000,000) per year. If we really want to address this problem,
we have to do it effectively and it is going to take a substantial amount. The longer
we wait, the more it will cost. So that is why we have to bite bullet and find a revenue
source to do this or we are failing in our responsibility.

Council Chair Rapozo: Thank you. Anyone else? Councilmember
Chock.

Councilmember Chock: I will just say where I am with this. First of
all, I want to thank Councilmember Kualii. I think it 1s true. With the GET not
passing, I really appreciate him moving in a direction of trying to come up with a
solution, and this is one (1). First and foremost, I guess where I am having a hard
time 1s on the timing. It does seem based on all of the efforts moving forward with
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our finance task force and GFOA, that we might be premature to make a big decision
like this. It would be my interest to really look at the bigger, broader-picture of a
comprehensive budget plan that we have talked about in addressing this because I
do not want to look at this as a Band-Aid. I do think, just as our housing issue, we
are going to need to come up with a combination of remedies, and that is really one
(1) of the reasons why I wanted it keep the GET alive as one of the options for us to
consider. I would be happy to keep this alive, except timewise, I think today is the
day if it 1s going to go on the ballot. I do not think I would be able to move on the
amendment unless we had some support from the Administration that they could
agree to it at this point at a quarter percent (0.25%). I think there is more time for
us to talk about this and we need that in order to solve this bigger problem.

Councilmember Hooser: I am not able to support this for many of the
same reason as expressed by the Budget & Finance Committee Chair and others.
This generates no new income and kind of sidesteps the reality of the pain that it is
going to take to solve this problem. That pain i1s either cutting two million
dollars ($2,000,000) if we want two million dollars ($2,000,000) off the budget, which
1s impossible to do, or raising taxes by two million dollars ($2,000,000). The reality
1s that the only way to get two million dollars ($2,000,000). This just puts something
on the ballot to put off the decision and lets the people choose. At the end of the day,
if it passes, we would still have the same choice; either raise taxes or cut the budget
by two million dollars ($2,000,000). While it is perhaps a good-faith effort, I see it as
not moving us in the direction that we need to go. We will have to take and make
some hard choices. Again, I did not support the GET increase. In the future, I will
look at direct impact user fees like the gas tax, but I am more interested in looking
at the visitor industry and how they can carry a greater load than they are carrying
right now. I understand the impacts of that would not occur if we raise property
taxes, for example, on hotels. It would not occur until next budget. But I am unable
to support this. Also, it is important to me with anything I support moving forward,
we have to have traffic congestion as part of the plan. It cannot just be bridges and
repaving. We have to have a plan perhaps working with the State, but a plan and a
willingness to invest in the infrastructure needed, even minor infrastructure needs
that will help specifically on the eastside. The Kapa‘a traffic is a nightmare and we
cannot sidestep our responsibility by just saying it is the State’s job. Thank you.

Council Chair Rapozo: Councilmember Kagawa.

Councilmember Kagawa: I will try to keep it brief. I agree with
Councilmember Hooser on the Kapa‘a congestion being priority number one for this
County. I think there was a plan to go behind Coco Palms, connect to somewhere
near the bypass, and that would alleviate traffic out of Kapa‘a town to service
residents in Wailua Houselots and Wailua Homesteads. That was looked as a plan
to ease congestion on the main highway. From my understanding, I think the former
Managing Director had proceeded with another community meeting and the
residents in Wailua Houselots that the road was coming through had objected for a
second time. It is not easy for the Department of Public Works to get there, but at
some point, what is going to be the way to ease that congestion because the Kapa‘a
crawl is bad? We cannot just keep saying “next year, next year, next year.”
Councilmember Kuali, I think it is out of frustration that how to we put more moneys
in the hands of the Department of Public Works to do some of these things and get it
done, not just talk about it and pave these highly used roads like Olohena Road. Once
school starts, it is super busy. Every parent that takes their children from Wailua
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Homesteads goes through Olohena Road to take their children to the Kapa‘a Middle
School, Kapa‘a Elementary School, Kapa‘a High School. How do we fix that road that
1s in terrible condition right now? How do we fix roads on the west side that are in
terrible condition? I think that the way this County government can help the private
sector who puts the money to the best use and gets the job done, is we need to bring
on those projects and get those projects out. How can we generate thirteen million
dollars ($13,000,000) more over the prior year and have nothing to go out to the
private sector? Well, not nothing. We have the Transportation Investment
Generating Recovery (TIGER) grant that is going through and Puhi Road is going
through. I would like to recognize the Department of Public Works for getting those
projects out that is stimulating the private construction industry. But we need more
and we need those that are in bad shape, as Lyle told us many times. If we neglect
1t, it just compounds. You have to do more work. You have to go down to the base
cores and fix that. I think getting more money into the hands of Lyle, but it is going
to take cooperation. We cannot just be giving more money via tax and letting
government grow as Councilmember Kuali‘l pointed out in his presentation. The
County budget has doubled over twelve (12) years. How can we say we have a revenue
problem? It is a spending and maybe just cost problem that how do we improve it
then? Are we going keep giving twenty-four percent (24%) pay raises over four (4)
years? Is that going to get us there? No. It has to stop. The private sector is not
giving raises. Just because we show a fund balance that is large, does not mean we
have money. The people are suffering. Somehow the State negotiates these large
pay raises for the Counties because the State does not have to pay the tab. It is
amazing how that happens. Yes, they give their prison guards and what have you
small pay raises, but when comes to police and fire, which they do not pay the tab,
they look at our fund balance and say, “Well, Kaua‘l County, you have a lot of money.
So we will give the maximum pay raise.” It is amazing. I think that cycle needs to
be stopped or least controlled a little bit because if that keeps happening, no matter
what we tax, it will just keeping going out to labor cost and pay raises. Again, we will
end up in the same place, even though we are taxing more with not enough money
for Lyle to get the job done as far as catching up on the repaving and fixing of the
bridges. It is a large problem. We have a new Council on board in next budget and
that is your task number one. Thank you, Council Chair Rapozo.

Council Chair Rapozo: Anyone else? Councilmember Kualii.

Councilmember Kualii: I just want to say that for me, this is primarily
about protecting our fixed income seniors and struggling families from any kind of
new regressive tax like the GET, a tax that they could not vote on because the Charter
does not allow it. But what they can vote on is creating a fund that puts aside existing
taxes for a purpose that everyone agrees is needed, the backlog. You hear the scary
talk about cuts, the pain it will take, and the hardship it will take, but we are
forgetting about the Unassigned Fund Balance. With budgeting, it is about priorities.
We say that we were unable to, we were unable to because we could get away without
making the necessary cuts. If the voters held us accountable even just for five
hundred thousand dollars ($500,000) or two million dollars ($2,000,000), we would
find the cuts. We have seen the growth. We have seen the blowing up of the budget.
We can start doing the opposite. We can start finding the cost savings, not with the
scary, painful hardship. I do not believe that. Look at our Unassigned Fund Balance.
For the past ten (10) years, it has been over ten million dollars ($10,000,000). Two
million dollars ($2,000,000) out of ten million dollars ($10,000,000), so we are in a
less ideal situation, but this is critical. This is something that we have to do and I
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think we have to give the voters a choice here. In 2005, we have an Unassigned Fund
Balance of eleven million eight hundred thousand dollars ($2,800,000). In 2010, we
had an Unassigned Fund Balance of forty-three million dollars ($43,000,000). We
talked about 2015 before, which was twenty-seven million nine hundred thousand
dollars ($27,900,000). Let us figure out this reserve policy, but let us do some little
measure. Let us let the voters have the chance to vote on a tool that will force us at
budget time as an administration and a County to do better with our budgeting. We
must do better. Three hundred thousand dollars ($300,000), yes, we found more cuts
and then we had some additions. If the voters mandate us to do it, we will do it
whether it is two million dollars ($2,000,000) or even five hundred thousand dollars
($500,000). This is such a small amount when you talk about the one hundred ninety
million dollar ($190,000,000) government expenditures as a whole. I think it is kind
of sad that we are hearing all these kind of arguments and making it like a scary
thing about hardships. Our number one job as a Council is the budget, and we are
not doing it.

Council Chair Rapozo: Anyone else? If not, let me just say to
Councilmember Kuali‘l, I have not forgotten about the Unassigned Fund Balance.
We call it the Unassigned Fund Balance and the public says, “What the heck is the
Unsigned Fund Balance?” It is the surplus. It is the extra money, money that we
budgeted that we did not spend. That is really what it is. Many people have deferred
compensation plans or savings plans that automatically take money out of their
paycheck. If not for that automatic payroll deduction, they would not save. They
would spend that money. They just would. You go to the store, you see that impulsive
shopper rack, and you are going spend money. You might go to the movies more. You
are going to always find a reason to spend that money. That is what has occurred
with this County. We have the money, so we spend it. If you do not believe me, like
I said, look through the internal transfers that goes on the last quarter of the fiscal
year. We move moneys from this account to this one so we can either travel or buy
another computer. All of that can wait. All of those funds should be directed to the
Unassigned Fund Balance. That all should be part of the surplus, but no. We go out
and spend and spend. “Hey, we get some extra money folks, let us spend the money.”
I think that is what Councilmember Kuali‘ is talking about. If we had to, we would.
If we start looking for the reductions mid-year, mid-budget, budget versus actuals,
we would have a pretty good indication that we over budgeted with this one so we
know where we can reduce. You cannot tell me we cannot find two million dollars
($2,000,000) out of a twenty-nine million dollar ($29,000,000) surplus. What this will
do is this will force the County to be disciplined and this will force us, the Council and
Administration, to live within our means. It will force us because we will not have a
choice. It will automatically come out. Political will is not always present. Again, to
raise any additional taxes when we have a thirty million dollar ($30,000,000) surplus,
that is not right. That is absolutely not the way to do it to me. We have to make the
tough decisions. In other words, this Council has to be accountable to the public and
this Council has to say, “Do you know what? If we cannot manage to get it done with
the funds that we currently have and we do not have four (4) votes, or five (5) votes,
or whatever it is on the budget session to cut, then that need of fixing roads just
disappears.” I happen to be agree with Councilmember Hooser and Councilmember
Kagawa, and I think all of us share the same concern about congestion. But right
now, this a priority. This was such a priority not long ago that we were going to raise
the General Excise Tax. The Administration came in and said, “We need this because
we have to fix the roads.” If it is that much of a priority and we cannot find two
million dollars ($2,000,000) to fill up or back-fill the need that has been created? 1
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am going support this. Obviously, I can count. This is going to go nowhere, but I
would expect Councilmember Kualii to come back with a bill. I am going support
this because I think it is important. I think the public should be informed and this is
not new money. This is not tapping the taxpayers for more money. This is using
existing money out of the moneys that we do not spend, but earmarking it for a
specific cause, which again, was of such importance we were going to raise taxes. This
1s a no-brainer to me. Itis. Hey, let us force us to start doing it. Is it the silver bullet?
Absolutely not. But does this help? Of course it does. I applaud Councilmember
Kuali‘i for coming up with this. This is going fizzle away today and I am hoping that
the bill will follow shortly. I hope we can get that passed because we can talk about
reserves. Like I said it is been over ten (10) years that we have been waiting for a
reserve policy. I think the last time the Council came up with a resolution was
probably ten (10) or twelve (12) years ago establishing the reserve fund/policy and
nothing. We spend the money. We can talk all we want about the reserve policy. At
the end of the day, we have to take care of core functions and this is one of them
without having to raise taxes. I will be supporting the Resolution. Thank you.
Councilmember Yukimura.

Councilmember Yukimura: We are never going to achieve the kind of
discipline of a reserve policy if every time we have extra money we say, “We should
spend it,” and that is what I hear right now that. We have this extra money, so we
should earmark it for road repair. But by that theory, you are just constantly
earmarking away your reserves and then you also have unanticipated or anticipated
costs like lifeguard pay raises. If we spend all the Unassigned Fund Balance
amounts, then we do not have it for those kind of needs. So that is not very
responsible. We tried. We looked for additional “fat” in the budget and we could not
come up with more than three hundred fifty-five thousand dollars ($355,000), which
was not really additional “fat” if you have to spend it for road repair. That did not
even begin to address road repair. To say we have all of this extra money that we are
not spending is not true.

Council Chair Rapozo: The CAFR does not lie. Our financial
statement that the auditors do every year does not lie. We cut much more than three
hundred thousand dollars ($300,000). We cut a lot more, but out of what we cut, we
had to put to fund raises and put to our audit account. We cut more. But I think
Councilmember Kualii is correct. The reason why this body did not cut more is
because we did not really have to because we could get by with what we did. But we
did not have the money. Really, we are talking about two million dollars ($2,000,000)
out of a twenty-nine million dollar ($29,000,000) surplus. We are not spending away
and it is not foolish either because this is paving that we need. We can characterize
it however you want. At the end of the day, it is almost like when you take your kid
to the bank and say, “We are going to start a savings account for you. We are going
to take a certain percentage out of your allowance every month and we are going to
put into the bank whether you like it or not, and that will be saved that way you
cannot spend it. You cannot go buy the extra manapua or the ice cream at the wagon.
You will save this money. You do not have a choice.” In this case, it is “no, we are
going to take the money out for you, and you will spend it on road repair. You are not
going to be able to use that for anything else.” Ilook at almost like a training too that
“hey, this is the way we are going to do it because we cannot do it on our own.” With
that, roll call.
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The motion for adoption of Resolution No. 2016-48, Draft 1 was then put, and
failed by the following vote:

FOR ADOPTION: Kagawa, Kuali‘l, Rapozo TOTAL - 3,
AGAINST ADOPTION: Chock, Hooser, Kaneshiro, Yukimura TOTAL — 4,
EXCUSED & NOT VOTING: None TOTAL -0,
RECUSED & NOT VOTING: None TOTAL - 0.
Ms. Fountain-Tanigawa: Motion fails.
Council Chair Rapozo: Thank you. Can I get a motion to receive,
please?

Councilmember Kualili moved to receive Resolution No. 2016-48, Draft 1 for
the record, seconded by Councilmember Yukimura.

Council Chair Rapozo: Is there any discussion? Is there any public
testimony?

There being no objections, the rules were suspended to take public testimony.

There being no one present to provide testimony, the meeting was called back
to order and proceeded as follows:

The motion to receive Resolution No. 2016-48, Draft 1 for the record was then
put, and unanimously carried.

Council Chair Rapozo: Thank you very much. We will take a break.
Be back at 1:30 p.m. We have a certificate presentation and then we will conclude
with the rest of the agenda.

There being no objections, the meeting recessed at 12:41 p.m.

The meeting reconvened at 2:17 p.m., and proceeded as follows:

(Councilmember Kagawa was noted as not present.)

Council Chair Rapozo: Clerk, could we have the next item, please?

BILL FOR SECOND READING:

Bill No. 2629 — A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 22-8.2,
KAUAT COUNTY CODE 1987, AS AMENDED, RELATING TO SMOKING IN A
MOTOR VEHICLE

Council Chair Rapozo: Can I get a motion?
Councilmember Kualil moved for adoption of Bill No. 2629 on second and final

reading, and that it be transmitted to the Mayor for his approval, seconded by
Councilmember Yukimura.
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Council Chair Rapozo: Thank you. Is there any discussion? I
understand there may be an amendment to this. Is there an amendment? We will
take the amendment and then have the discussion. Is there anyone here in the
audience wishing to testify on this matter?

Ms. Fountain-Tanigawa: Chair, we have one (1) registered speaker so
far.

Council Chair Rapozo: Why do not we go ahead and suspend the
rules with no objection.

There being no objections, the rules were suspended to take public testimony.
Ms. Fountain-Tanigawa: Alice Parker.

ALICE PARKER: Alice Parker, for the record. I would really
like to somehow protect our children against cigarette smoke and other smoke in cars
because combined with the odors from gasoline and motor vehicles on the road, it is
very hard on their lungs. Here we have a lot of problems with asthma, maybe partly
due to the pesticides. I am suspicious about the ringed-neck parakeets because that
1s how I got Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease (COPD). It was citizen birds;
parrots, cockatiels, and such. I wish there was some way we could protect the kids.
I do not know how we are going do it, but please keep trying. Thank you.

Council Chair Rapozo: Thank you. Anyone else wishing to testify?
Seeing none, I will call the meeting back to order.

There being no further testimony, the meeting was called back to order, and
proceeded as follows:

Council Chair Rapozo: Is there any further discussion? There is an
amendment that was circulated. I am going to ask one of you here to go ahead and
introduce this.

Councilmember Kualili moved to amend Bill No. 2629, as circulated, as shown
in the Floor Amendment, which is attached hereto as Attachment 1, seconded
by Councilmember Chock.

Council Chair Rapozo: Thank you. The amendment is basically
reducing the age. The original Bill says smoking in a vehicle is prohibited “in any
motor vehicle, whenever occupied by a person less than eighteen (18) years of age.”
The amendment drops that to less than thirteen (13) years of age. That is what is on
the floor. Is there any further discussion? Councilmember Yukimura.

Councilmember Yukimura: Can someone give us the rationale for the
amendment?
Council Chair Rapozo: Is there any other discussion while we wait for

Councilmember Kagawa?

Councilmember Yukimura: Is he still here?
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Council Chair Rapozo: Yes, he is here.
Councilmember Yukimura: Then we should wait for him.
Council Chair Rapozo: Is there any other discussion? I will say that

I was not sure how the age was determined to begin with. The State law prohibits
possession or purchasing of tobacco by anyone under twenty-one (21) years of age.
This here was basically eighteen (18) years of age. I had a concern, and I talked about
1t at the last meeting. I do not want to rehash the details, but basically, you can go
to fight for your Country and you can actually enlist at age seventeen (17), and yet,
you cannot make a choice to smoke a cigarette and be legal. That was my concern
about the smoking law going to twenty-one (21) years of age to begin with. I had
suggested or asked if anyone would have considered reducing the age down to a
person where an age of a person who really did not have a choice. In my opinion, at
age seventeen (17), sixteen (16), or fifteen (15), you can still make a choice. You can
catch the bus or whatever the case is. I think this was Councilmember Kagawa’s
response to some of my concerns. But until he is here, I will not speak for him. I am
curious to know how the others feel because if this is not satisfactory to you folks,
then we may as well prolong the agony and kill it. I am curious to know how you
folks feel. Go ahead, Councilmember Yukimura.

Councilmember Yukimura: I do not know that a fourteen (14) year old or
a fifteen (15) year old really have choices to not be in a car. I think they should be
included. At this point unless I hear something otherwise, I am not convinced that
this is a good amendment or at least something that I would vote for.

Council Chair Rapozo: Thank you. Anyone else? We will vote on the
amendment as circulated. Roll call.

The motion to amend Bill No. 2629, as circulated, as shown in the Floor
Amendment, which is attached hereto as Attachment 1 was then put, and
carried by the following vote:

FOR AMENDMENT: Kagawa, Kaneshiro, Kuali‘l, Rapozo TOTAL — 4%,
AGAINST AMENDMENT: Chock, Hooser, Yukimura TOTAL - 3,
EXCUSED & NOT VOTING: None TOTAL -0,
RECUSED & NOT VOTING: None TOTAL - 0.

(*Pursuant to Rule No. 5(b) of the Rules of the Council of the County of Kauaf,
Councilmember Kagawa was noted as silent (not present), but shall be recorded as an
affirmative vote for the motion.)

Council Chair Rapozo: Great, tied. Let us take a recess until
Councilmember Kagawa is available.

There being no objections, the meeting recessed at 2:23 p.m.
The meeting reconvened at 2:23 p.m., and proceeded as follows.
(Councilmember Kagawa was noted as present.)

Council Chair Rapozo: Councilmember Kagawa your amendment...
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Councilmember Kagawa: Move to amend as circulated.

Council Chair Rapozo: It was already introduced as a courtesy.
Councilmember Kagawa: Sorry.

Council Chair Rapozo: We took the vote and it is 3:3.
Councilmember Kagawa: Okay.

Council Chair Rapozo: It is a tie on the amendment.

Councilmember Kagawa: Okay, let us vote again.

Council Chair Rapozo: Go ahead, Councilmember Chock.
Councilmember Chock: Along the same lines of the discussion earlier,

I think I would be more willing for a sixteen (16) years of age cutoff based on some of
the concerns you talked about. I know that from the standpoint of the Tobacco-Free
Hawail Group, that is probably where they would like to draw the line as well. T am
willing to support that moving forward if that makes a difference. If not, then let us
just take the vote.

Council Chair Rapozo: Councilmember Kagawa.

Councilmember Kagawa: If I can explain. I was hesitant to support the
Bill at eighteen (18) years of age because I do not want to put more burden on our
police force, which I believe is already overburdened. I wanted to make it at an age
where it kind of would be an obvious violation. It is much more difficult to determine
a fifteen (15) year old or a sixteen (16) year old, whether they are eighteen (18) years
old or older, whereas it is pretty clear when a twelve (12) year old or under individual
is in a car and seeing an adult smoking. It is a clear violation. It is easy for the police
to make a judgment because they are not making a judgment at a standstill. Cars
are moving. I would say, let us look at passing something like this, taking a step, and
at some point in time, whether it is three (3) months or six (6) months from now, let
us get an update from the Police on any success or areas that would tell us that “hey,
this not much work on our part. We can go up higher to eighteen (18) years of age.”
But having something first as a trial to see what kind of burden it would be on our
police force with a real clear distinction that this is a minor under the age of
twelve (12). It is very easy to tell whether children are twelve (12) years of age or
younger to me. That is how I feel. I just wanted to do something practical. Let us
have the studies, let us have the due diligence, and the response from the Police
before we just set it at a number higher and closer to the age of eighteen (18).

Council Chair Rapozo: Anyone else? No one else? Well, we are at the
main motion right now. The amendment failed for thirteen (13) years old. I am not
sure if Councilmember Chock is interested or willing to introduce another
amendment. I am just going to consult with staff. T am not sure of our options are.
Can we take another vote with Councilmember Kagawa here now? We can?
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Ms. Fountain-Tanigawa: The vote is currently 3:3, as Councilmember
Kagawa was out of the room. I know you were waiting for him to cast his vote. You
could cast his vote, or you could revote, or he could cast his vote at this time.

Council Chair Rapozo: Okay.

Councilmember Hooser: I have a question.

Council Chair Rapozo: Go ahead, Councilmember Hooser.
Councilmember Hooser: When you are out of the room, that is like a

silent vote. What does that go with what?

Council Chair Rapozo: The motion.
Councilmember Hooser: It goes with the motion?
Council Chair Rapozo: I guess it would be a “yes” vote. Okay. So

then the motion passes.

Ms. Fountain-Tanigawa: Yes.
Councilmember Kagawa: Can I vote now?
Council Chair Rapozo: We are back to the main motion. No, we

voted. It ended up 3:3, but you were...

Ms. Fountain-Tanigawa: We counted Councilmember Kagawa as a
silent vote.

Council Chair Rapozo: We are back to the main motion right now,
which is amended, and it reflects the age of thirteen (13) years and below. Is there
any further discussion on that? Councilmember Kagawa and then Councilmember
Kaneshiro.

Councilmember Kagawa: Again, I think Councilmember Kaneshiro and
I mentioned that if we truly wanted to make a larger impact, then we would ban
smoking at all times whether you are at home, at a park, or anywhere. But that is
not the motion before us. It only prohibits smoking while in a vehicle with a minor.
It is a step; however, it is a very small step. If we are after curing the main problem,
I think the burden is upon the anti-smoking groups to do the education to make sure
that this action is prevented at all times, not just when they are riding in cars. I had
my dad who smoked a lot. He was the greatest dad I could ever imagine. The last
thing he would do is harm my health, but it was just the way it was before where a
lot of people smoked in the past. I did not like the smell as a child, but in the old
days, you were not able to speak up as much. I think now children are more vocal
with their parents. They do speak up a lot more than before. I think that has changed
and we need to acknowledge that. When I hear discussion about this Bill, it is almost
like the children are still in the 1960s and 1970s where they are not allowed to speak
up, and that is totally not true. The children nowadays speak up far more than they
ever did in the past. They tell their parents, “do not do this,” “do not do that,” or “it
1s stink.” We need to acknowledge that times have change and they are not little
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puppets in the car. They do speak up. It is upon the parents to know that “hey, my
child is more educated now about this.” We have to hold the parent’s judgement in
high value. I hope that the majority of the parents, if their child told them by
education that getting smoke in the car is not good, that the parents would listen,
abide about it, and abide by it at all times. I will be supporting this small measure.
I do not totally like it. I think as we get into parenting laws, it is not a good idea for
the Council because like I said, it is just one (1) small aspect of parenting. If we are
going to get into judging parents, I think we are going beyond our scope. We have
larger duties here to do for the taxpayers. Thank you, Council Chair Rapozo.

Council Chair Rapozo: Councilmember Kaneshiro.

Councilmember Kaneshiro: I will not be supporting this Bill although I
agree tobacco is bad and secondhand smoke is detrimental to the people around,
especially when in an enclosed area like a car. I am not comfortable legislating every
aspect of a person’s life, especially common sense items. If that was the case, we could
sit here and probably make laws all day protecting each other from ourselves. I am
not comfortable doing that. It all comes down to where your threshold lies and
everyone 1s different. Some may think it is a no-brainer, but then again, why pass
this if the very people we are trying to stop from smoking in their cars with minors
can go home and smoke in the house with the same minor? Again, where is the
threshold? I do not think someone who smokes in the house all day next to a minor
is any safer than someone smoking in a car with a minor. We will go ahead and make
a law, I guess. What is the next step? Do we go ahead and make a law that bans
smoking in your house with a minor. Ultimately, this Bill sounds good, feels good,
but does it accomplish its intended purpose? I mentioned earlier, Big Island has had
this law in place since 2010 and has only issued one (1) citation. That came from
their Chief of Police. Does that mean people are not smoking in their cars anymore?
We have a law that bans using an electrical device while operating a vehicle. Does
that mean no one is using or talking on their cell phone? I see a lot of people using
or talking on cell phones while driving. It is just what you are comfortable with. It
1s a gray issue because where do we stop on this? Do we start telling parents what
they can or cannot feed other people’s kids or their own kids because food may not be
healthy or perceived unhealthy? I think the most important thing is education and
outreach, and that is where the effort should be. It should not be on creating a law.
We had Keiki to Career here earlier today. They are educating the children and
parents on the fact they should be eating dinner together because it provides a
stronger bonds. Same as this. There should be advertisements on television, YouTube
videos, or whatever it is to say “smoking in a car with a child is bad and do not do it”
and make everyone aware of that. That is where I think it should be, not in us making
another law.

Council Chair Rapozo: Thank you. Anyone else? Councilmember
Chock.

Councilmember Chock: I just want to thank the Members for
entertaining this discussion and this Bill. I know it may seem somewhat insignificant
in light of the all of the things that we need to be focusing on. I just appreciate that
we can take a small step as a community towards advocating for health. I think that
it is a statement that we are saying as a governmental body that says we do care
about our community and we care about our youth. It is a small step and a first step,
but I am glad we are taking it. I was also happy to hear based on today’s certificate,
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families sharing meals that there is data that supports it and that education is
happening around the table that can deter these kind of behaviors in a car. I think
it is a combination effect. I would agree with the previous statements that it takes a
lot of different initiatives to accomplish what it is that we want to see collectively.
But this is one (1) thing that we can do as a governing body to say “we believe we are
going to be responsible and commit to being responsible.” Thank you.

Council Chair Rapozo: Thank you. Councilmember Yukimura.

Councilmember Yukimura: I do not see this as a parenting bill. I see it as
a child protection bill. A child in a car that can be seen by a police officer is in a public
place. It is not in a private home. I think this is, yes, a small step, but an important
step to protecting our children against secondary smoke. As our Budget & Finance
Committee Chair noted, we started the morning with this really wonderful campaign,
Keiki to Career, that seeks to support our young people to be caring, competent,
confident, and healthy children, and “healthy” is a big part of it. You cannot do
anything if you are not healthy or well. I think this is important. I thank
Councilmember Chock for introducing it, and I hope we can help in this small way.

Council Chair Rapozo: Councilmember Kuali‘i.

Councilmember Kuali‘i: I agree with some of the comments of Vice
Chair Kagawa and Councilmember Kaneshiro. I would much have rather seen this
be a resolution instead of an ordinance. I do see it as differentiating between public
space versus private space and safe space versus safe behavior. I think as legislators,
we have an obligation, if you will, to look at making public spaces safe. So that is
why you have laws about smoking in restaurants and bars and what have you. In
fact, all of those laws; seatbels, riding in the back of a pickup truck, and not using
your cell phone while driving, are all State laws. I really think this should be a State
law and that we should be passing a resolution that supports the legislature passing
a State law. I think they eventually will. They are probably pretty close. Having said
all of that, I think passing our law would help with more education and more
outreach, maybe even giving the kids a tool to use to talk to their parents. I guess I
am not really sure, but when we vote, I will know. I might even be silent.

Council Chair Rapozo: Anyone else? If not, thank you for the
amendment. I would not support this Bill if the age was at eighteen (18). I am still
struggling with the reach by the County. I am not sure that the Police will actually
go out and actively enforce it, but I think it does act as Councilmember Kuali‘l just
said, a tool that kids can use that gives parents an incentive to, my golly, do not light
that cigarette up if you have a ten (10) or fifteen (15) minute drive. Gosh, can you not
wait? It is just another tool whether or not it gets enforced. I will be supporting the
Bill today because I do think it is a small step. I can really relate to what
Councilmember Kaneshiro said. When I was thinking about it last night, I was kind
of on the same track with his reasoning because it does seem like that. When do we
stop? At what point do we stop legislating behaviors? But I do not think anyone can
deny that smoking in a vehicle with a kid...again, the reduction in the age is what
did it for me. I can support this with that reduction. I will be voting accordingly.
With that, roll call.
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The motion for adoption of Bill No. 2629, as amended, on second and final
reading, and that it be transmitted to the Mayor for his approval was then put,
and carried by the following vote:

FOR ADOPTION: Chock, Hooser, Kagawa, Kuali‘,
Yukimura, Rapozo TOTAL — 6,
AGAINST ADOPTION: Kaneshiro TOTAL -1,
EXCUSED & NOT VOTING: None TOTAL -0,
RECUSED & NOT VOTING: None TOTAL - 0.
Ms. Fountain-Tanigawa: Six (6) ayes.
Council Chair Rapozo: Thank you. With that, we have three (3)

pending items that we need to go into Executive Session first. Can you read us into
Executive Session, please? Can you read ES-859 and ES-862 first because I wanted
to make some comments regarding ES-860 and ES-861 before we take the vote?

EXECUTIVE SESSION:

ES-859 Pursuant to Hawai‘l Revised Statutes (HRS) Sections 92-4 and
92-5(a)(4), and Kaua‘l County Charter Section 3.07(E), the Office of the County
Attorney requests an Executive Session with the Council to provide the Council with
a briefing on Special Counsel’s continued representation of the Planning Department
in Transient Vacation Rental (TVR) Appeals and related matters. The briefing and
consultation involves consideration of the powers, duties, privileges, immunities,
and/or liabilities of the Council and the County as they relate to this agenda item.

ES-862 Pursuant to Hawai‘l Revised Statutes (HRS) Sections 92-4
and 92-5(a)(4), and Kaua‘li County Charter Section 3.07(E), on behalf of the Council,
the Office of the County Attorney requests an Executive Session with the Council to
provide the Council with a briefing, discussion and consultation regarding the
Quarterly Report on Pending and Denied Claims. The briefing and consultation
involves consideration of the powers, duties, privileges, immunities, and/or liabilities
of the Council and the County as they relate to this agenda item.

Council Chair Rapozo: Can I get a motion to go into Executive
Session for ES-859 and ES-862?

Councilmember Kagawa moved to convene in Executive Session for ES-859
and ES-862, seconded by Councilmember Yukimura.

Council Chair Rapozo: Is there any discussion?
Councilmember Kagawa: Yes.
Council Chair Rapozo: Go ahead.

Councilmember Kagawa: Is this about the Police Commission?
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Council Chair Rapozo: No, this is ES-859 and ES-862. We are going
to do Police Commission next because I wanted to vote on that separately.

Councilmember Kagawa: Okay. Thank you.

Council Chair Rapozo: Is there any public testimony?

There being on objections, the rules were suspended to take public testimony.

There being no one present to provide testimony, the meeting was called back
to order, and proceeded as follows:

Council Chair Rapozo: With that, roll call.

The motion to convene in Executive Session for ES-859 and ES-862 was then
put, and carried by the following vote:

FOR EXECUTIVE SESSION: Chock, Hooser, Kagawa,
Kaneshiro, Kuali, Yukimura,
Rapozo TOTAL -7,
AGAINST EXECUTIVE SESSION: None TOTAL -0,
EXCUSED & NOT VOTING: None TOTAL -0,
RECUSED & NOT VOTING: None TOTAL - 0.
Ms. Fountain-Tanigawa: Seven (7) ayes.
Council Chair Rapozo: Can we have ES-860 and ES-861?

ES-860 Pursuant to Hawail Revised Statutes (HRS) Sections 92-4 and
92-5(a)(4), (6) and (8) and Kaua‘i County Charter Section 3.07(E), the purpose of this
Executive Session is to provide the Council with a briefing as it relates to Bernard P.
Carvalho, Jr., in his official capacity as Mayor of the County of Kaua‘i, in Kaua‘ Police
Commission, et al. vs. Bernard P. Carvalho, Jr., in his official capacity
as the Mayor of the County of Kaua‘i, Civil No. 12-1-0229 (Fifth Circuit Court);
CAAP NOS. CAAP-12-0001123 & 13-0000015 (Hawai‘i Supreme Court, Intermediate
Court of Appeals), and related matters. The briefing and consultation involves
consideration of the powers, duties, privileges, immunities, and/or liabilities of the
Council and the County as they relate to this agenda item.

ES-861 Pursuant to Hawai‘l Revised Statutes (HRS) Sections 92-4 and
92-5(a)(4), (6) and (8), and Kaua‘i County Charter Section 3.07(E), the purpose of this
Executive Session is to provide the Council with a briefing as it relates to the Kaua‘i
Police Commission and the Kaua‘l Police Commission Members, in their official
capacity, in Kaua‘i Police Commission, et al. vs. Bernard P. Carvalho, Jr., in his
official capacity as the Mayor of the County of Kaua‘i, Civil No. 12-1-0229 (Fifth
Circuit Court); CAAP NOS. CAAP-12-0001123 & 13-0000015 (Hawail Supreme
Court, Intermediate Court of Appeals), and related matters. The briefing and
consultation involves consideration of the powers, duties, privileges, immunities,
and/or liabilities of the Council and the County as they relate to this agenda item.
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Council Chair Rapozo: Is there a motion?

Councilmember Kagawa moved to convene in Executive Session for ES-860
and ES-861, seconded by Councilmember Yukimura.

Council Chair Rapozo: Thank you. Councilmember Kagawa.

Councilmember Kagawa: For the general public, I had numerous calls
from various individuals, some of them are former Councilmembers who are very
frustrated with this whole item or incident. It came before I came on the Council and
back then, I wished the Council had put a fork in this one. In a nutshell, what is the
reason why they are asking for more money and just the status? This is again, before
Councilmember Kaneshiro, Councilmember Chock, Councilmember Hooser, and I
came on. Just bring us up-to-date on why we are here, what occurred, what decision
was made, and why we are asking to continue this issue any further?

Council Chair Rapozo: Hang on. Is there any other discussion?

Councilmember Kagawa: I think that should be discussed in open
session for the public.

Council Chair Rapozo: Yes. Mr. Trask.
There being no objections, the rules were suspended.

MAUNA KEA TRASK, County Attorney: Thank you, Honorable
Chair and Councilmembers, for the record, Mauna Kea Trask, County Attorney. To
answer Councilmember Kagawa’s question, I can tell you that the Office of the
County Attorney is here today and I want to stress that the Office of the County
Attorney is requesting Special Counsel funding today. The reason why we are doing
this is the original complaint was filed by the Police Commission in the Fifth Circuit
Court on or about June 2012. Prior to that, this body had authorized Special Counsel
to represent both the Police Commission and the Mayor respectively because
obviously, for obvious reasons, the Office of the County Attorney is in a poor situation
to represent both of these parties. Under the Charter Section 8.04, I believe, the
Office of the County Attorney is the chief legal representative for the entire County,
all Boards and Commissions, as well as the Mayor. This body saw it wise to provide
Special Counsel to achieve that. The Office of the County Attorney is making this
request today for the sake of pursuing the best course of action for the Office of the
County Attorney and the County as a whole in order to maintain the current position
of the Office of the County Attorney, which is impartial. We work with the Mayor on
a daily basis. This Office works with the Police Commission on a daily basis. In fact,
there a Police Commission meeting this Friday. The difficulty about this case is that
it does not include any monetary damages. This is strictly a declaratory action
regarding the extent of executive authority. The Police Commission is part of the
executive branch as the Police Department is comprised of the Police Commission,
the Chief of Police, and all necessary staff. This is not a case that involves purse
strings.

To answer your question from a legal perspective, the pertinent case is
Harris v. DeSoto which is 80Haw.425.1996. The Hawai‘i Supreme Court found that
where the consideration for settlement involves commitment of city funds or an
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exercise of municipal authority exclusively vested in the Council by the Charter, the
Council may alone pledge, grant, or commit settlement consideration. Similarly,
where the consideration for settlement involves an exercise of municipal authority
exclusively vested in the executive, in this case, either the Police Commission or the
Mayor, the executive may alone pledge, grant, or commit the settlement
consideration. In this case, we are here today to ask because the current balance of
the Mayor’s Special Counsel account is one thousand two hundred dollars ($1,200)
and the current balance of the Police Commission is about eight hundred
seventy-nine dollars ($879). I contacted both Counsels because on June 30, 2016, the
Intermediate Court of Appeals (ICA) issued a disposition, in this case, a published
opinion, overruling the circuit court order and judgment finding that the Mayor had
the power to essentially discipline and suspend. The ICA found that the Police
Commission has this power. When the judgment is filed by the Intermediate Court
of Appeals, should the Mayor decide to appeal further, he needs to talk with his
attorney. He cannot talk with his attorney and proceed further responsibly, in order
to manage the funds and make sure that any legal fees are incurred beyond what the
balance is, without coming to you first and asking for more money. Similarly, the
Police Commission cannot engage meaningfully with its Counsel without a
replenishment of their funds. I called both Counsels and got an estimated amount
from both of them respectively. That is why I am here today. They have attorneys.
I do not feel comfortable advising either party on the merits of the case. I have never
been involved in the past, so therefore I am requesting this. We have the money for
this, it is budgeted, and under the Charter, this is defmltely clearly a special matter
necessitating Special Counsel. Whatever your opinions are in the underlying issues
regarding legality and the legal questions, I think we can all agree that maintaining
the impartiality of the Office of the County Attorney so we can continue to provide
competent, comfortable, and confident service to the client, all parts of the client, it
1s reasonable to ask and it is necessary.

Councilmember Kagawa: I have a question.
Council Chair Rapozo: Go ahead.
Councilmember Kagawa: Was the last decision that the Police

Commission has the sole power to discipline or fire the Chief of Police?

Mr. Trask: The most recent, correct.

Councilmember Kagawa: That was the most recent decision?

Mr. Trask: Per ICA.

Councilmember Kagawa: What is the continued fees for? Is it to appeal
that?

Mr. Trask: If appropriate, if decided by the Mayor after

speaking to his attorney, to seek a writ with the Hawai‘l State Supreme Court.

Councilmember Kagawa: Or we could not seek a writ, right? Could we
just accept the decision?

Mr. Trask: That 1s the Mayor’s choice to make.
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Councilmember Kagawa: The Mayor’s choice? If the Council
appropriates the money, can we say “enough fighting, accept the decision, and let us
move on,” right?

Mr. Trask: This 1s what I am concerned about, if the
Council does not appropriate the money in this case to either party, the parties are
still entitled, via the Charter, to attorney representation. That means it would fall
to me, and that means I would have to provide the Mayor counsel and/or possibly the
Police Commission counsel. I think that given the high degree of emotionality
surrounding this issue, at least the appearance of the impropriety, and the confidence
with everything else we do, and this is one (1) case. We have one hundred (100)
pending cases, daily issues that happen, paperwork, advice, and everything. To put
all of that and compromise those good relationships that we have with the client
because of one (1) case, I think would be ill-advised.

Councilmember Kagawa: Would you say it is normal practice for the
Council to allow appeals upon appeals upon appeals? When is a decision good enough
for this legislative body to just accept it? We may not agree with it, but because we
hold the purse strings we say, “Enough. We accept the decision. No more funding
from taxpayer moneys for appeals” because appeals are done because you do not agree
with the decision. At some point, when does legislative branch say, “We accept the
decision because going further is just wasting taxpayer money when we are broke?”

Mr. Trask: This Council has plenary authority not to
authorize this today. That is correct; however, that will not stop the appeal. If the
Mayor decides to appeal further, it will be done via the Office of the County Attorney
because it is a declaratory action. So you cannot settle this case, and that is really
what I am here to avoid. I am not here to advocate either way. I understand the
legal arguments and we could engage in a legal discussion all day. But really what
this is about is the continuing impartiality of the Office of the County Attorney.

Council Chair Rapozo: In the past, I thought the Council voted
whether or not we were going to appeal certain cases?

Mr. Trask: Certain cases, correct.

Council Chair Rapozo: And we do not have a say with this one?

Mr. Trask: The Police Commission did not sue for any

kind of damages. There is no monetary damages involved. This is strictly a legal
declaratory question regarding executive authority, which clearly is not Council
purview. It is between two (2) executive departments.

Council Chair Rapozo: You said earlier that they both have lawyers,
so are you not really able to talk to them?

Mr. Trask: I spoke with their lawyers, but I did not speak
to the Police Commission about merits of the case and I did not speak to the Mayor
about the merits of the case.

Council Chair Rapozo: Who told you that we needed to move forward
on appeal? Was it one of the attorneys?
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Mr. Trask: No, I decided to. It is a difficult ask and this
1s an uncomfortable situation, but in order for the client to get advice and I do not
want them to incur and go beyond their allocation, this was a big issue for the Office
of the County Attorney in the past, incurring Special Counsel fees without going to
Council first. This was on hold for a couple of years given that ICA took a year or
two (2) to come to a decision. So we never revisited the balance. I did not want to
come and get more money for no purpose. As soon as the June 30th decision came
down, that was a Friday, I believe within the next week, I prepared and sent the
request over to get agenda time. It has taken a couple of weeks.

Council Chair Rapozo: Okay. If we do not approve the funding today,
your Office becomes the attorneys for the Police Commission and for the Mayor?

Mr. Trask: Correct.

Council Chair Rapozo: At that point you would make the

determination, together, your Office, would decide whether to move forward or not?

Mr. Trask: The client would. Under the rules of
professional conduct, that is the client’s decision to make whether or not to appeal.

Council Chair Rapozo: Right, but I would guess your input is going
to play heavily on what they decide to do.

Mr. Trask: We would have to advise both diligently. As
difficult as it would be, we are obligated to do it, and we all took the Oath of the
Constitution and the Charter.

Council Chair Rapozo: Yes. It is an appeal. It is just appealing the
findings of the ICA, correct?

Mr. Trask: Correct.

Council Chair Rapozo: Councilmember Hooser.

Councilmember Hooser: Given the history, is the Office of Disciplinary

Council okay with you and whoever in the County representing and taking over this
case?

Mr. Trask: Under the Klattenhoff case, government
firms and attorney’s offices are viewed differently. As you know, compared to the
private sector, conflict of one (1) attorney impugns the whole office. The courts have
recognize that government attorney’s offices are different. We would have to chine a
wall, it would be screened, and just to be safe, I would likely appoint separate staff
on it. That will take staff time. You have thirty (30) days to file your writ after
judgment is entered. Judgment has not been entered yet. That would dramatically
shift the current work flow and processing of whoever was assigned to this, plus we
have another case pending right now that we anticipate is going to involve of the work
of four (4) attorneys. It is a bigger case, it is broader, and we believe those attorneys
would be conflicted from that. So that leaves largely would be me, because I have
litigation experience to do one (1) of the parties, and I would have to put an advice
and counsel attorney on the other one. It would just be a tremendous draw on



COUNCIL MEETING 73 JULY 20, 2016

resources and extremely difficult to manage appropriately, but I believe it would be
legal nonetheless.

Councilmember Hooser: Up to this point, neither you nor other
members of the Office of the County Attorney are up to speed? Have you been arguing
the case for or against?

Mr. Trask: Not at all.

Councilmember Hooser: So the private counsel has been doing that?

Mr. Trask: They have been, from the beginning since
June 2012.

Councilmember Hooser: They can hit the ground running, but you

cannot. In essence, it seems like it would take a lot more time and resources, not to
mention the conflicts?

Mr. Trask: It would pretty much stop work flow for a lot
of issues.

Councilmember Hooser: Okay. Thank you.

Council Chair Rapozo: How much have we spent on attorney fees for

the case involving the Mayor’s Special Counsel?

Mr. Trask: Pardon me.

Council Chair Rapozo: And also the Special Counsel for the Police
Commission?

Mr. Trask: One (1) moment.

Council Chair Rapozo: For some reason, I am thinking that Special

Counsel for the Police Commission was not being charged. Ithought they were doing
that pro bono. I thought we were told that. I am going off of memory, so I could be
wrong. I thought they said they would carry the appeal all the way to the Supreme
Court.

Mr. Trask: For the Office of the Mayor...
Council Chair Rapozo: No, for the Police Commaission.
Mr. Trask: Okay. To answer your first question, for the

Office of the Mayor, aggregate up until today since 2012 was fifty thousand
dollars ($50,000) has been approved, and forty-eight thousand seven hundred
forty-four dollars ($48,744) has been spent. Deputy County Attorney Peter Morimoto
has the amount for the Police Commission. I did speak with Corlis Chang, who
represents the Police Commission. After speaking with her, she did the ICA appeal
work pro bono or gratis, but she would like to charge for the Supreme Court. So that
1s the fifteen thousand dollars ($15,000).
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Council Chair Rapozo: I know what she wants. I am trying to figure
out what we were promised at that time. I swear it was to the Supreme Court.

Mr. Trask: My understanding was for the ICA. So far
what was appropriated was thirty thousand dollars ($30,000) for the account for the

Police Commission, and funds spent is twenty-nine thousand one hundred twenty
dollars ($29,120).

Council Chair Rapozo: Are there any other questions for Mauna Kea?
If not, thank you.

Mr. Trask: Thank you.

Council Chair Rapozo: Anyone in the audience wishing to testify on
this matter before we take the vote?

There being on objections, the rules were suspended to take public testimony.

There being no one present to provide testimony, the meeting was called back
to order, and proceeded as follows:

Council Chair Rapozo: Is there further discussion? Councilmember
Hooser.

Councilmember Hooser: Is this a vote to go into Executive Session?

Council Chair Rapozo: Yes.

Councilmember Hooser: I support going into Executive Session. I do

not have a question.

Council Chair Rapozo: Anyone else? Everything that we were going
to be briefed on we just got briefed on. Number one, Mauna Kea is not the legal
counsel of the Mayor. He is not the legal counsel of the Police Commission. I cannot
1magine, like he said, he does not have the strategies. He does not have it to discuss
it. So I do not see the need to go into Executive Session. I appreciate Councilmember
Kagawa asking those questions in the open. Number two, there comes a point in time
where you just have got to accept it and move on. We have already spent forty-eight
thousand dollars ($48,000) plus twenty-nine thousand dollars ($29,000), which is
basically about eighty thousand dollars ($80,000), and because someone is not
satisfied with the ruling, we are going toss another forty-five thousand
dollars ($45,000) and who knows what after that into a matter that do you know
what? Move on. Both sides, put the egos on the little chair and move on and start
working to rebuild the relationship. I have everything right here. All of the
Councilmembers read these minutes from 1964, 1967, and this goes back to the days
the framers of the Charter, that it is very clear. We do not want the Mayor to have
the authority over the Police Department. I mean it said it in here, that is what the
Charter says, and that is what the ICA found. It is clear. I do not need to spend
another forty-five thousand dollars ($45,000) of public money to be told that again by
the Supreme Court.
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Last week, Tom Brady, Mr. Deflategate, canceled and said, “I am done. I am
done with the appeal. I am not going to allow this matter to distract from our team’s
goals.” I think at some point the Mayor, Police Commission, or whoever it is needs to
say the same thing. Let us stop it. Let us stop the distractions and let us work on
moving forward. If the Mayor, or the Police Commission, or whoever it is wants to
change the authority and wants to give the Mayor the authority to discipline any
department head that is appointed by a Commission, then do a charter amendment.
Do a charter amendment. Stop already. Stop the bleeding, stop the games, and just
move forward. I have absolutely no doubt in my mind what the intent of the Charter
Commissions way back fifty (50) years ago said. It is free for anybody that wants to
read it. I also have the minutes that are available to Councilmembers of all of the
discussions we had. I cannot release to the public, but this is for Councilmembers.
This 1s all of the Executive Session minutes that we had as we went through this
ordeal. There is some very telling things in here as well. I am not an attorney, I am
not a judge, and who know what the Supreme Court would rule, but I know I am
satisfied with the ICA’s ruling. I think all of the parties involved should accept that,
move forward, and stop taking money already. I do not need to go into Executive
Session unless there is some compelling reason we need to go. Based on what Mauna
Kea said earlier about he is not their attorney and cannot talk to us about the legal
arguments of this case, there is really no real reason to go into Executive Session.
Councilmember Hooser.

Councilmember Hooser: I am not clear there is or is not a reason to go
into Executive Session. It is my understanding there may be implications to the
County above and beyond the Police Commission as a result of the ruling made. I am
not sure if it is appropriate to discuss that in open session.

Council Chair Rapozo: Okay. Councilmember Yukimura.

Councilmember Yukimura: I, too, think there are a lot of issues that we
should at least discuss with the two (2) attorneys probably separately so we can
understand what the issues are. But I am not ready to say that we should just stop
here. I would like a chance to discuss the various implications with both attorneys.

Council Chair Rapozo: Both attorneys meaning Corlis Chang and
who is the other attorney? Is it Mr. Fuji?

Councilmember Yukimura: Yes, whoever they are.
Council Chair Rapozo: Councilmember Kagawa.
Councilmember Kagawa: I do not mind going into Executive Session. I

value Mauna Kea’s judgment too much. I may not agree on him whether or not we
need to continue the funding for this, but as far as at least going in there and listening
to what he has to say, share, and enlighten us on anything that cannot be answered
here, I do not mind going in. I feel the people that have contacted me about this are
members of the previous Councils and it was the same thing as you said. They said
it was crystal clear what Morris Shinsato’s intention was when he drafted the
Charter. The Police Commission would have the authority. That is what the
frustration was. There is so much hoopla about what happened back then and all of
those people that had the experience that served on Councils prior knew what the
Charter meant, and yet, we still went through all of this legal things. We even had
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an officer on paid-leave for years because of the bad decisions that were made. It is
just frustrating that we are going to continue to discuss something that everybody
with history about this issue knew. Are we going to keep riding the hamster wheel
or we are going to stop it? We are going throw away the hamster wheel away today.
Enough.

Council Chair Rapozo: Is there any other discussion? Mauna Kea, if
you could come up again?

There being no objections, the rules were suspended.
Mr. Trask: For the record, Mauna Kea Trask.

Council Chair Rapozo: Are you in the capacity or in a position to
discuss the legal aspects of this case in Executive Session?

Mr. Trask: I am ready to discuss the legal aspects of the
decision and effect beyond. We have five (5) department heads appointed by
Commissions. I can talk about those issues. I can talk about what I see are legal
issues right now and what could be raised, but again, I am not privy to attorney-client
privilege things between the parties and their attorneys. I could definitely talk to
you about issues you may have and other pending cases that I think are relevant to
this that I can only talk to you about, and the potential effect of failing to fund this
single proceeding on those other proceedings.

Council Chair Rapozo: Are there any other questions? If not, thank
you. Do you have a question? Go ahead.

Councilmember Hooser: Thank you, Council Chair Rapozo. It seems
to me that there are many ramifications to the County as a result of this decision;
whether or not the Police Commission is prepared to supervise the Chief of Police
might be one of them, the roles of the Police Commission and the Mayor, other
Commission appointees, and that kind of thing. Can we discuss that? Is that
something that we can discuss in open session or do we need to do it in Executive
Session? Do we need another item only the agenda? From my perspective if in fact,
the Police Commission is charged with supervising the Chief of Police, they do not
have staff, they meet once a month, they have Sunshine Laws, and they are
volunteers so they are not in the position to be able to do that. This thing is really
complicated as you know. How do we have that discussion? Do we have it in
Executive Session or do we have it out here?

Mr. Trask: As the client, the Council can make those
calls. This body would hold the privilege. I would feel much more comfortable
speaking about the legal issues in Executive Session. If you speak them out here, you
waive them. I would not feel comfortable about some things, like pending cases and
potential effect just because we are presently in adversarial proceedings. I would
refrain from those things. It would be kind of difficult, but you bring up issues that
are true; both practical, legal, and even ideal types of things.

Councilmember Hooser: Are you saying in order to have this
discussion, we need to be in Executive Session? Is that what I heard?
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Mr. Trask: It is your choice to make. If you want to have
that discussion in the open floor, some things I will just respectfully refuse to answer
because I just think it is very ill-advised for it effects people beyond this Council.

Councilmember Hooser: Thank you.

Council Chair Rapozo: Are there any other questions? If not, I will
call the meeting back to order. Thank you, Mauna Kea.

Mr. Trask: Thank you.

There being no objections, the meeting was called back to order, and proceeded
as follows:

Council Chair Rapozo: Just so that you all know, if it does not come

under the exemptions of Hawai‘i Revised Statutes (HRS) Section 92, we are not going
to have the discussion in Executive Session. The only thing back there is only thing
we cannot have out there. I do not want to go in and have a discussion of opinions
and philosophies. We go in there to make sure we ask the legal questions that are
not exempt and cannot be heard out in the open. As long as everybody understands
that, I am ready. Are you folks ready? Is there any other discussion? With that, roll
call. This is for ES-860 and ES-861.

The motion to convene in Executive Session for ES-860 and ES-861 was then
put, and carried by the following vote:

FOR EXECUTIVE SESSION: Chock, Hooser, Kagawa,
Kaneshiro, Kuali‘l, Yukimura,
Rapozo TOTAL -7,
AGAINST EXECUTIVE SESSION: None TOTAL -0,
EXCUSED & NOT VOTING: None TOTAL -0,
RECUSED & NOT VOTING: None TOTAL - 0.
Ms. Fountain-Tanigawa: Seven (7) ayes.
Council Chair Rapozo: With that, we will break here. I honestly

cannot tell you how long this will be. We will take a break, B.C. It is going to be at
least a caption, but it will probably be more like a forty-five (45) minute break. Thank
you.

There being no objections, the meeting recessed at 3:10 p.m.

The meeting reconvened at 4:09 p.m., and proceeded as follows:

Council Chair Rapozo: Can we have the next item, please?

COMMUNICATIONS:

C 2016-161 Communication (07/08/2016) from the County Attorney,
requesting authorization to expend additional funds up to $30,000.00 for Special
Counsel’s continued services provided for the Planning Department in Transient
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Vacation Rental (TVR) Appeals, and related matters: Councilmember Yukimura
moved to approve C 2016-161, seconded by Councilmember Hooser.

Council Chair Rapozo: Is there any discussion? Is there any public
testimony?

There being no objections, the rules were suspended to take public testimony.

There being no one present to provide testimony, the meeting was called back
to order, and proceeded as follows:

The motion to approve C 2016-161 was then put, and carried by a vote of 6:0:1
(Councilmember Kualii was excused).

Council Chair Rapozo: Motion carried. Next item.

C 2016-162 Communication (07/08/2016) from the County Attorney,
requesting authorization to expend additional funds up to $30,000.00 for Special
Counsel’s continued representation of Bernard P. Carvalho, Jr., in his official capacity
as the Mayor of the County of Kaua‘i, in Kaua‘i Police Commission, et al. vs. Bernard
P. Carvalho, Jr., in his official capacity as the Mayor of the County of Kaua‘i, Civil
No. 12-1-0229 (Fifth Circuit Court); CAAP NOS. CAAP-12-0001123 & 13-0000015
(Hawaii Supreme Court, Intermediate Court of Appeals), and related matters:
Councilmember Yukimura moved to approve C 2016-162, seconded by
Councilmember Hooser.

Council Chair Rapozo: Is there any discussion? Councilmember
Kagawa.

Councilmember Kagawa: I would like to request a roll call vote please.

Council Chair Rapozo: Okay. Isthere any discussion before we vote?

No discussion? I am going say a few words because I think this issue has gone on for
way too long. The request is to fund the potential appeal of the ruling that was
recently made by the Intermediate Court of Appeals regarding the authority of the
Mayor to discipline the Chief of Police. My comments will apply to both C 2016-162
and C 2016-163 because funding is being requested to represent the Police
Commission as well. We are asking for forty-five thousand dollars ($45,000) more
dollars to fund an appeal because potentially, the Mayor is not satisfied with the
result of the ICA ruling. I think it is time we put this thing to rest. If you read the
ruling, it spells out the reasons why our Charter is set up the way it is. It is basically
to take the politics out of the Police Department, and I agree with that. I think the
Police Commission is the oversight. I think the Police Commission made up of
civilians and citizens is where it is supposed to be. I think if you look at minutes and
I talked about earlier, the minutes from the Charter Commissions back fifty (50)
years ago, made it very clear that they wanted the Police Commaission to have that
authority. I am not going to be supporting the funding. I understand that if we do
not support the funding than the duty to represent the Mayor and the Police
Commission will fall on the Office of the County Attorney. Basically, the ball is in
the Mayor’s court right now. I am not going support the funding. I do not know how
vote goes here, but if it does not get funded by the County, by the taxpayers, it is
going to be up to the Mayor if he wants to continue on this journey. The legal remedy
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for this County, for the Mayor, or whoever believes that the Mayor should have that
authority is to go down the charter amendment road and let the people decide if, in
fact, they want to change the Charter so that the Mayor has the authority to hire,
fire, and discipline the Chief of Police. I am not going to be supporting the funding.
I think that enough is enough. I think that as we keep talking about working
together, let bygones be bygones or however you want to say it, and start rebuilding
the relationships, this is the way to do it. Let us do it. Let us practice what we preach
and let us move forward and not backwards because the ruling came out not how we
wanted it to. With that, I am not going to be supporting the funding. Councilmember
Yukimura.

Councilmember Yukimura: This case is more than whether the Mayor
properly suspended the Chief of Police. It is about the structure of County
government. I do believe that the writers of the Charter wanted to put some buffer
between the Mayor and the Chief of Police; however, exactly what that buffer is, is
not clear. One could argue that the appointing and firing power is in the Police
Commission, but that there are other intermediate steps of management that are
within the power of the Mayor, who is a day-to-day manager and the Chief Executive
Officer (CEO) of a corporation. I am all in favor of amending the Charter once we
get the final interpretation of what the Charter says, and until we go to the Supreme
Court, we will not know what that final interpretation is. I think it is our
responsibility to get that final interpretation, and then if we think that changes or
clarifications need to be made, then to do that. In the meantime, having this really
vague area, or a potentially unclear interpretation, or maybe even an incorrect one
because you do not know because the Supreme Court is the final interpreter in our
state of this Charter law, I think we need to get that.

Council Chair Rapozo: Councilmember Kagawa.

Councilmember Kagawa: Thank you, Council Chair Rapozo. One of the
things for me that is a constant is I have several Councilmembers from the past that
served on this body that talked to me. Some of the things that I do hear on the
Council, they like and some of the things they do not like. One (1) thing constant
among all of their talks with me about this subject is that they all agree that is was
the intention from the beginning when Morris Shinsato wrote the Charter, that the
Chief of Police could not be hired and fired by the Mayor. That was the separation of
power that was intentionally left out of the Mayor’s power. The reason for it was that
a political decision could affect the most important public safety operation that we
have. They wanted to keep the politics out of the Police Department. So that is
one (1) constant, and I think sometimes we have to look at our past, learn from them,
and listen to them. It is frustrating for them to watch years and years, I think they
were probably giving the Mayor that advice back when this happened, and somebody
forgot to listen and carried this thing on, spent eighty thousand dollars ($80,000) so
far of moneys that could have been saved for roads or whatever. It might even cause
more lawsuits? The time is now to listen to the people that served before us, or do
your homework, or read what Council Chair Rapozo has right there on the desk.
Hawai1l Campaign Sending Commission (CSC) got it right. I think the first ruling
got it wrong. I am not going second guess a Judge’s decision, but I think the CSC
ruling follows what like I said, the unanimous consent of the Councilmembers that
have talked to me before that served on this body. They told me that they advised
the Mayor of this back when this all happened, and again, I think he was given bad
advice on this decision. I do not expect our Mayor to be perfect, but I think it has to
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stop at some point. We have got to stop the nonsense and today is a good time to stop
it. Thank you, Council Chair Rapozo.

Council Chair Rapozo: Councilmember Yukimura.

Councilmember Yukimura: The question before the Court is not whether
the Chief of Police can be hired or fired by the Mayor. That is clear under the Charter.
It is the Police Commission that does that. The question before the Court is whether
the Mayor can be involved in intermediary steps of discipline. That is a key one that
1s not explicitly addressed by the Charter. It really affects the day-to-day operations
of the County. It is a very tricky situation, which is why really careful interpretation
of the law in the context of operations of county is so important. We cannot ask former
Councilmembers to be the final interpreter of the law, or even ourselves, or even the
Intermediate Court. I really think we need to have the Supreme Court be the final
say on that.

Council Chair Rapozo: Councilmember Hooser.

Councilmember Hooser: I will be supporting this. This is obviously
very important decision and a very important point of principle in terms of who is in
charge of the Police; whether it is how much power the Mayor has, how much power
the Police Commission has. We have gone this far and I think we need to settle this
once and for all. I also believe that the reality of it is number one, both the Police
Commission and the Mayor deserve legal representation. We are obligated to provide
that to them. If we do not provide funds then we will provide funds through the Office
of the County Attorney staff time. There is a cost no matter what. I believe thisis a
more efficient way to deal with it. I think we are obligated to deal with it and I, too,
would like to get it over with and look at how to improve the process through possible
charter amendments in the future regardless of which way the final court would rule.
I believe the Charter probably needs some amendments to it. Thank you.

Council Chair Rapozo: Councilmember Chock.

Councilmember Chock: I am reminded that it is pretty sad what
happened in this case, and this was before us, so before me, that our leadership
decided not to address this gray area and work collaboratively towards some sort of
agreement before subjecting our system and our taxpayers to this discrepancy about
disciplinary action. Now, this is where we are on the track, just like we are on the
track to a lot of our court hearings process, which leads from one to another. I want
this to end, but I realize that we also have some obligations to our employees and to
people within the County, who are in conflict here, to have representation. The
question is really about do we put it on our County Attorney to choose or be in the
middle, or do we provide the representation that is necessary? I think that there is
some sense of the responsibility that is included in here, but it does not feel good in
any way. Thank you.

Council Chair Rapozo: Councilmember Kagawa.

Councilmember Kagawa: It is not CSC, it is the ICA that I meant. Since
we talked about listening and talking and collaborating with former
Councilmembers, that is what I do. That is the way I do business. I listen to people
that came before us that I have trusted. I prefer doing that then listening to people
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who are sending me E-mails over the internet from the mainland. Thank you, Council
Chair Rapozo.

Council Chair Rapozo: Councilmember Kaneshiro.

Councilmember Kaneshiro: There is no simple way around this issue. I
think I am torn on both ends. But I think there needs to be an end somewhere and
1t 1s going to be up to the Mayor to decide what he wants to do. I am not going move
forward with funding it any further. Again, it is ultimately the Mayor’s decision.
What does he want to do? I think the decision was clear and we have just have to go
from there. I know what kind of the predicament it puts our County Attorney in, but
where does it end? I do not know.

Council Chair Rapozo: I want to make it clear that a vote against the
funding is not a vote against moving forward. The difference is forty dollars ($40) an
hour for Office of the County Attorney, versus three hundred dollars ($300) or four
hundred dollars ($400) an hour for Special Counsel. If we do not have confidence in
our own Office of the County Attorney, then we have some issues. But that is the
only difference, it is the cost. Forty dollars ($40) an hour is what I have been told,
and not the outrageous amounts we are charged by Special Counsel. A vote against
the funding is not saying anything other than, if the Mayor chooses, not if the Council
chooses. If the Mayor chooses to move forward with the appeal, then he does so at
the expense of his Office of the County Attorney. That is what this does. It is that
simple. Like Councilmember Kaneshiro just said, enough. If the Mayor wants to
move forward, that is his prerogative, and that is the way it will go. With that, roll
call.

Councilmember Yukimura: Council Chair Rapozo.
Council Chair Rapozo: Yes.
Councilmember Yukimura: I just want to say that the additional

resources that it is going to take the Office of the County Attorney to muster will be
affecting how they can serve and do their other duties, so there are those costs. Also,
that other Commissions are involved here because the language determining or
affecting the Chief of Police also applies to other Boards and Commissions.

Council Chair Rapozo: Roll call.

The motion to approve C 2016-162 was then put, and tied by the following vote:

FOR APPROVAL: Chock, Hooser, Yukimura TOTAL — 3,
AGAINST APPROVAL: Kagawa, Kaneshiro, Rapozo TOTAL — 3,
EXCUSED & NOT VOTING: Kuali4 TOTAL -1,
RECUSED & NOT VOTING:  None TOTAL - 0.

(Council Absence, Tie Vote; Pursuant to Council Rule No. 5(e), item shall be made the
Special Order of the Day at the August 3, 2016 Council Meeting.)

Council Chair Rapozo: Motion is a tie, so it gets deferred to the next
Council Meeting, right? Okay. Anything else? I think that was last item on the
agenda. Oh, yes, C 2016-163.
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C 2016-163 Communication (07/08/2016) from the Office of the County
Attorney, requesting authorization to expend additional funds up to $15,000.00 for
Special Counsel’s continued representation of the Kaua‘l Police Commission and
the Kaua‘l Police Commission Members, in their official capacity, in Kaua‘i Police
Commission, et al. vs. Bernard P. Carvalho, Jr., in his official capacity as
the Mayor of the County of Kaua‘l, Civil No. 12-1-0229 (Fifth Circuit Court);
CAAP NOS. CAAP-12-0001123 & 13-0000015 (Hawai‘i Supreme Court, Intermediate
Court of Appeals) and related matters: Councilmember Yukimura moved to approve
C 2016-163, seconded by Councilmember Hooser.

Council Chair Rapozo: Is there any discussion? Councilmember
Kagawa.
Councilmember Kagawa: Thank you, Council Chair Rapozo. I will be

voting against this, but I have a lot more confidence in the performance of this
attorney as we look at the history of the other attorney and his performance. With
this case, and I believe this Special Counsel for the Police Commission, has actually
given us a discount or pro bono work, whatever you want to call it. Again, I would
feel much better if this request was approved because I believe that this attorney has
at least given up some of her free time in working on this case. Thank you, Council
Chair Rapozo.

Council Chair Rapozo: The motion is to approve. Roll call.

The motion to approve C 2016-163 was then put, and tied by the following vote:

FOR APPROVAL: Chock, Hooser, Yukimura TOTAL — 3,
AGAINST APPROVAL: Kagawa, Kaneshiro, Rapozo TOTAL — 3,
EXCUSED & NOT VOTING: Kuali‘i TOTAL -1,
RECUSED & NOT VOTING: None TOTAL - 0.

(Council Absence, Tie Vote; Pursuant to Council Rule No. 5(e), item shall be made the
Special Order of the Day at the August 3, 2016 Council Meeting.)

Council Chair Rapozo: Motion is tied. It will move to the next
Council Meeting in two (2) weeks. With that, there is no further business. Before I
adjourn today’s meeting, I just want to make note that Congressman Mark Takai has
passed away. I just want to offer our condolences as a Council to his family. He was
a great person and he will be missed. I just wanted to make that announcement for
the record. Councilmember Kagawa.

Councilmember Kagawa: Council Chair Rapozo, I would recommend
that we do a certificate...

Council Chair Rapozo: Absolutely.

Councilmember Kagawa: ...or a resolution of the some sort to honor
Representative Takai.

Council Chair Rapozo: Thank you very much. With that, the meeting
1s adjourned.
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ADJOURNMENT.

There being no further business, the Council Meeting adjourned at 4:27 p.m.

espectfully submitted,

- JADENK FOUNTAIN-TANIGAWA
County Clerk
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Attachment 2

(July 20, 2016)
FLOOR AMENDMENT #1
Bill No. 2629, A Bill For An Ordinance to Amend Section 22-8.2, Kaua‘lt County

Code 1987, As Amended, Relating to Smoking in a Motor Vehicle

t

Introduced by: ROSS KAGAWA
Amend Bill No. 2629 by amending section paragraph “(0)” to read as follows:
“Sec. 22-8.2 Smoking Prohibited in Certain Areas.

Except as otherwise provided in Chapter 22, Article 8, smoking shall be
prohibited in the following places within the County of Kaua'‘i:

(a) Any restaurant, except as defined as a “part-time
restaurant/bar,” only when operating as a bar, and a separate open air
area of a restaurant in this Article.

(b) Elevators in buildings generally open to and used by the
public, including elevators in apartment and other multi-unit

residential buildings.

(c) Patient rooms, wards, waiting rooms, lobbies and public
hallways of public and private health care facilities including, but not
limited to, hospitals, clinics, and physicians’ and dentists’ offices.

(d) Any room which is primarily used for exhibiting any
motion picture, stage drama, dance, musical performance or other
similar performance during the time that the room, hall or auditorium
is open to the public for such exhibitions.

(e) Museums, libraries and gallerie’.s.

® Any enclosed or partially enclosed area or building owned,
leased, operated, or maintained by the County, except any dwelling unit.
As used in this Subsection, “dwelling unit” shall have the meaning
ascribed to it in K.C.C. Sec. 8-1.5 of the Comprehensive Zoning
Ordinance for the County of Kaua‘l. In addition to those buildings
owned, leased, operated, or maintained by the County where smoking is
prohibited under this Paragraph (f), the Fire Chief may prohibit
smoking in any other building or enclosed area of public assemblage
owned or operated by the County of Kaua‘li when in his or her opinion to
do so would promote the public health, welfare or safety. The Fire Chief
may exercise his or her authority to prohibit smoking by posting signage
pursuant to Sec. 22-8.4(c).

(2) Except as provided in Sec. 22-8.3 or as limited by this
Paragraph (g), all areas in business or charitable establishments. For
purposes of this Paragraph (g), a “business” means any sole
proprietorship, partnership, joint venture, business trust, limited
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liability company, business corporation, professional corporation, or
other business entity formed for profit-making purposes, and “business
establishment” includes, but is not limited to, any of the following
establishments operated by a business:

(1)  Any school;

(2)  Any hotel, except individual hotel rooms, separate
open air areas, and bars;

(3)  Any financial institution;

(4) Any industrial, commercial or wholesale
establishment;

(5)  Any utility;

(6)  Any retail establishment where goods or services are
sold, leased or otherwise provided to the public or to another
business including, but not limited to, food and grocery stores;

(7)  Any restaurant; provided that smoking shall be
permitted in a restaurant under the following circumstances:
Smoking shall be permitted in a separate open air area of a
restaurant when the business operating the restaurant refrains
from designating the area as nonsmoking pursuant to Subsection
(1) of this Section.

(h)  Restrooms. Any restroom open to the public in places
specified in this Section.

1) Notwithstanding Sec. 22-8.3, any area of any bar, hotel
room, nightclub, or governmental property which has been designated
by the owner, operator, manager or other persons having control of such
property as a nonsmoking area and marked with a “no smoking” sign or
signs.

All enclosed or partially enclosed areas within multifamily
dwellings that are open to the common use of all unit owners or residents
including, but not limited to, lobbies, hallways, corridors, stairways,
waiting areas, and recreation areas within multifamily dwellings. For
purposes of this Subsection, “enclosed or partially enclosed areas” means
areas closed in by a roof or overhang and at least one (1) wall. An area
commonly described as a lobby or roofed mall shall be deemed enclosed
or partially enclosed for purposes of this Subsection.

(k)  All enclosed or partially enclosed areas within commercial
buildings not subject to the exclusive use and possession of a tenant and
open to the common use of the tenants of the building and their
employees and customers including, but not limited to, common
entrance areas, lobbies, malls, hallways, corridors, escalators,
stairways, and waiting or rest areas within commercial buildings.

(D In the event the building is both a multifamily dwelling
and a commercial building, all areas except for private residences.

(m) All areas within recreation areas or facilities under the
maintenance of the Department of Public Works’ Division of Parks and
Recreation, except such areas within each area or facility as the
Department may, with the approval of the Fire Chief as to facilities,
designate by appropriate signs as areas within which smoking is
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permitted. County parks shall not constitute “recreation areas or
facilities” within the meaning of this Subsection.

(n)  Any child care, adult day care or health care facility.

(o) In any motor vehicle, whenever occupied by a person less

than [eighteen (18)] thirteen (13) years of age.”

(Material to be deleted is bracketed. New material is underscored.)
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